2	
3	
4	
5	
6	
7	
8	
9	CITY OF DETROIT
10	BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS
11	BOPC VIRTUAL MEETINGJ
12	November 9, 2023 at 6:30 P.M.
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	



1

2

CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good evening, everyone. It is 3 now 6:30. I call this session to the Detroit Board of 4 Police Commissioners meeting to order. So grateful to be 5 here at New Providence Baptist Church. And so we'll begin 6 this meeting with a word of invocation by the great 7 leader here, the Executive Associate Pastor here, 8 Reverend Booker, who will provide us with some words of 9 welcome as well as invocation. 10 11 REVEREND BOOKER: Thank you so much. Good evening, 12 everyone. We welcome you to the New Providence Baptist 13 Church. On behalf of our pastor, Dr. Everett Jenning 14 Senior, the administrators, and the entire congregation 15 at large, we welcome you and thank you for being here. Be 16 at home. As this meeting takes place, we want you to feel 17 welcome, and we just want to welcome you again to New 18 Providence Baptist Church. Please bow your heads for a word of prayer. Father, we thank you for this day. We 19 20 thank you for this occasion. Lord, we pray that you will come and be in this meeting. Bless the agenda. We thank 21 you for the elected officials. We ask that you continue 22 to keep them and all other public servants, Lord that are 23 here tonight. Lord, let this agenda go off smoothly. Let 24

25 this meeting be able to voice our concerns, and you will



1 get the glory for the safety and protection of the City 2 of Detroit and even this district. We ask it in Jesus' 3 name. Amen.

4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Amen. Thank you so very much 5 for your warm words of welcome as well as your powerful 6 invocation. According to my math we don't quite yet have a quorum, so we'll move forward with our amended agenda 7 which will allow us to receive reports from our staff. 8 9 And so we'll go from the bottom up, Secretary Shah. Let's 10 begin first with announcements and then your report. 11 MS. SHAH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. For announcements, 12 the next Board of Police Commissioner's meeting is 13 Thursday, November 16th at 3:00 PM at Detroit Public 14 Safety Headquarters. And the next community meeting will 15 be Thursday, December 14th at 6:30 PM. The Third Precinct 16 will be hosting at Constantine Recreation Center in the 17 auditorium, 8904 Woodward Avenue in Detroit. For the 18 November committee meetings that are scheduled. The policy committee is scheduled to meet on Tuesday, 19 November 21st at 5:00 PM and the Citizen Complaints 20 21 Committee is scheduled to meet on Tuesday, November 28th 22 at 5:00 PM.

23 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. I do see 24 Commissioner Burton making his way to the table and that 25 would provide us a quorum. And so with that, we will go



to our introduction of commissioners with Secretary Shah. 1 2 MS. SHAH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. MS. SHAH: Chair, QuanTez Pressley - Here. 3 MS. SHAH: Vice Chair, Jim Holly submitted an excused 4 5 absence. 6 MS. SHAH: Commissioner Tamara Liberty Smith -7 Present. MS. SHAH: Commissioner Linda Bernard - Attorney 8 9 Linda Bernard, District 2. Welcome everyone and excuse my 10 glasses. I have an eye infection. MS. SHAH: Commissioner Cedric Banks, submit an 11 12 excused absence. 13 MS. SHAH: Commissioner Willie Bell - Present, 14 District 4. 15 MS. SHAH: Commissioner Willie Burton - Present. On 16 behalf of the men and women of District 5. MS. SHAH: Commissioner Lisa Carter -17 MS. SHAH: Commissioner Ricardo Moore - Present. 18 Representing District 7, the home team tonight. 19 20 MS. SHAH: Commissioner Jesus Hernandez -MS. SHAH: Commissioner Rory Gamble submitted an 21 2.2 excused absence. CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Alright. And so with that, we 23 do have a quorum. And so with that quorum, we'll now move 24 25 to the approval of the November 9th, 2023 agenda. Is



1 there any objection to the approval of that agenda? Hearing none, the agenda will be approved. Now we'll move 2 on to the approval of the minutes for November the 3 second, 2023. Is there any objection to the approval of 4 5 the minutes? Hearing no objection, those minutes will be approved. Last week we held a closed session, and so now 6 the Chair will entertain a motion to approve the minutes 7 from the closed session of November 2nd, 2023. 8

9 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: So moved and support.

10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's been properly moved and 11 seconded. All those in favor please signify by saying, 12 Aye.

13 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those who oppose name? No, 15 the Ayes have it. And so with that, we will now move on 16 to the introduction of BOPC Staff, Chief of Police, 17 elected officials and representatives as well as

18 community leaders by Secretary Shah.

MS. SHAH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. For BOPC staff, we have Chief Investigator Jerome Warfield joining by Zoom. We have present today also Ms. Theresa Blossom, Ms. Jonya Underwood, Ms. Jasmine Taylor, Mr. Robert Brown and Ms. Candace Hayes is joining by Zoom. The American Sign Language Interpreters today are Ms. Yakata and Dr. Stephanie Beatty. We also have present today DPD HR



Director Katrina Patillo. Don Handyside is the court
 reporter today. Si and Lucas are providing video.
 Sergeant Allan Quinn is providing audio and we also have
 present today from OCI, Acting Supervisor, Supervising
 Investigator Elgin Murphy. Chair, I can't see down the...
 Do we have the Chief here today?

7 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: He's not here yet. I believe
8 DC Hayes will be here. He did mean say that he would be a
9 few minutes late.

MS. SHAH: Okay. Thank you. So sitting in for Chief 10 11 James White, we will have Deputy Chief Franklin Hayes. 12 And for elected officials and representatives, we have 13 Ms. Marie Overall from State Representative Tyrone 14 Carter's Office. Ms. LaDon Davis City Council member Fred 15 Durhal III's Office, former Commissioner William Davis 16 and Ms. Fredia Butler, Community Relations President for 17 the Second Precinct.

CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Excellent. We are so grateful 18 for everyone's attendance. It is such an amazing turnout 19 tonight and it is our hope that it would aid to the 20 21 productivity of today's meeting. And in that way you have an opportunity to make a contribution in today's meeting 22 in the area of public comment. So if you so desire to 23 make public comment, for those who are in the room, you 24 25 can fill out public comment card and give it to this



Page 7

1 gentleman right here in the white sweater, Mr. Brown. And those who are on the Zoom you can identify yourself on 2 that platform to make public comment. With that, we'll 3 now move on to the BOPC Officers Report where we first 4 have some recognitions and appreciation. We will start 5 with the commissioner who represents this area, none 6 other than Commissioner Moore. And I would be remiss if I 7 didn't say one of the commissioners who represents this 8 9 area as Commissioner Burton represents this area as well. COMMISSIONER MOORE: Well, it's actually Commissioner 10 Smith. 11

12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Well, whoever wants to take 13 credit for this amazing community?

14 COMMISSIONER MOORE: So my Sixth precinct family, I 15 just want to say good evening, and thanks for showing up 16 and showing out like you always do. This meeting tonight, 17 and I'm sure that folks who have passed around the city this year will tell you this is probably the well-18 attended meeting, citywide this year, 2023. So give 19 yourselves a hand because I truly appreciate you. I want 20 21 to also say thank you to Jonya Underwood, Board Secretary Shah and Sergeant Lee Brown for helping put this 22 presentation together. It's not easy trying to figure out 23 who to honor, who not to honor, but guess what? You 24 25 picked each other. So that made it just a little bit



1 easier.

So without further ado, let's get it started. We 2 ready? And I'm going to alphabetical order too. Veronica 3 Armstead, Linda Ballard, Yvette Bass, Zeta Phi Beta 4 5 Sorority Incorporated, Blue Phi, Police Officer, Lashawn Brown, Mary Brown, Dr. Patricia Butler, Kenyetta 6 7 Campbell, Cody Rouge, Peggy Dankert, Clois Foster, 8 Lorraine Harris, Donna Harris, Crystal Hart, Lynn Hausch, Police Officer. Heather Ivey, That's my birthday twin, 9 924. Police Officer. Kendall Jefferson, Bobbi Johnson, 10 Shinese Johnson-Wingo. We're almost done, family. Mary 11 12 Marsh, Mary McGee, President, Sixth Precinct, Community 13 Relations, Delta Sigma Theta Sorority Incorporated. And 14 my chairman is Omegas, Side Five Fraternity Incorporated. 15 They want to be family. Barbara Matney, Kathy McBride, 16 Carrie McKnuckle, Kelar Newsom, Police Officer Victoria 17 Overton, Shirley Rankins, Yvonne Robinson, Sylvia Roland, Shayne Sisco, Kimberly Stanton- Clemons, Ebony Teague, 18 Elizabeth Tindell, Paula Trilety, Police Officer Nicole 19 Wallace. Two more names. Angie Webb. And last but not 20 21 least, Sarah West. Congratulations to everyone. We so 22 appreciate you. Thank you.

23 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Well, now my cheekbones have 24 gotten an extra workout, unexpectedly, but what a reason 25 to smile for such an engaged community that's truly



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

making a difference for all the residents in this area. And I think that Commissioner Moore has just unlocked a secret. The way you get the people to turn out to the meetings, is to give them an award of appreciation. Brilliant. COMMISSIONER MOORE: Which precinct turned out anyway, Mr. Chairman? CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Duly noted, and second. COMMISSIONER MOORE: And the Second Precinct. CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Alright. So with that, we also have a recognition for our youth advisory panel. And that we'll be provided by Commissioner Carter, who we should

13 note has joined us as well as Ms. Blossom. Commissioner 14 Carter?

15 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. It's been 16 my honor to work with former Police Commissioner Annie Holt, as well as staff and others to create a youth group 17 to work with the board and ensure the voices of young 18 Detroiters are heard regularly and have impact. So last 19 year we, the Detroit Board of Police Commissioners voted 20 21 unanimously and approved a resolution to create a youth 22 advisory panel.

Thanks to the hard and fast work of the staff, as well as other police commissioners, the first youth advisory panel met November 8th, 2022. Our youth advisory



Page 10

1 panel is now one year old. Tonight, we want to recognize the historic first members and their service during the 2 last year. So as I call your name, would you please stand 3 and come to the podium? Alexis Scuttle, Kiara Johnson. I 4 think she's on... is she on Zoom? She's on Zoom. Perielle 5 6 Pace, Alana Spencer and Angelica Williams. Those of you 7 that are present, please stand and come to the podium. These youth had their say on all policies and issues 8

9 that came before the board during the last year and often before our nation. Facial recognition, license plates, 10 readers, fatal police use of force investigation, just to 11 12 name a few. So, Alexis, Perielle, Alana, and Angelica, we 13 present you with this certificate of appreciation for 14 serving in an inaugural as an inaugural member for the 15 first youth advisory panel for the City of Detroit Board 16 of Police Commissioners. Your outstanding contributions have advanced civilian oversight of law enforcement and 17 police community relations. Mr. Chair, at this time I 18 would like to pause and give the youth advisory panel 19 20 their certificate.

21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Please do.

22 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Alright, thank you.

23 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: We are so grateful for your 24 trailblazing service for the Detroit Board of Police 25 Commission.



Page 11

COMMISSIONER CARTER: There's one more. Just face
 this camera. Oh, face that way. Okay. Thank you.
 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Great job for putting this
 together. Great job of putting this youth program
 together, Commissioner Carter.
 COMMISSIONER CARTER: So thank you Mr. Chair. Now I

COMMISSIONER CARTER: So thank you Mr. Chair. Now I would like to welcome 11 new members of the panel that we 7 affectionately call YAP. Going into 2024 YAP will cover 8 all of our districts and most DPD precincts. So they are 9 very diverse and representative of Detroit. So I ask that 10 the returning members and the new members, please stand 11 12 up where you are to take the YAP pledge, wherever you 13 are. All right, thank you. The names are here, the 14 members of...

15 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All right. And so all of our 16 new members, please raise your right hand and repeat 17 after me. I say your name, I mean your real name. No, I'm 18 just pulling, pledge to fulfill the responsibilities of the youth advisory panel with integrity, cooperation, and 19 diligence. I pledge to work with respect of the opinion 20 21 of my fellow members and to follow approved decisions to carry out the panel's, missions, goals, and activities. I 22 23 pledge always to represent the panel in a positive and supportive manner in the community, and with members and 24 staff of the Board of Police Commissioners, police 25



1 departments, and other city agencies. Congratulations.

2 Thank you for your contribution.

3 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Mr. Chair, one last request.

4 We'd like to get a group photo real quick.

5 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Group photo, will you all

6 please come to the front for a photograph for this manner 7 of record.

8 COMMISSIONER CARTER: And while they're coming to the 9 podium, Mr. Chair, YAP meets once a month on the second 10 Wednesday on Zoom.

11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: How about we do this? Come 12 around the table back here. You all are the advisors of 13 this great board, and you all can stand behind us as we 14 take this picture together.

15 COMMISSIONER Or come this way, come this way. It'll 16 be quicker. Come on. Oh, you're taking a picture?

17 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Once again, congratulations.
18 And as close as you are to these seats, it's an
19 indication of your future. We look forward to you
20 replacing us. Thank you.

21 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Mr. Chair. I just wanted to 22 reiterate that the YAP meets once each month on the 23 second Wednesday on Zoom. So those who missed tonight's 24 meeting will take their pledge at the December meeting 25 and the board will continue to get reports and updates



Page 13

1 from you and the panel. Thank you, Mr. Chair. CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Our last BOPC's 2 Officer Report is relative to the fact that we're excited 3 that now the board is fully staffed, well fully 4 5 positioned now with our most recent member, Rory Gamble. 6 We look forward to welcoming him at our next meeting. And we are in great anticipation and expectation of the 7 8 productivity that this board can now have, now that we 9 are fully staffed. With, that are there any other questions or comments under the Board of Police 10 Commission's officer's report? Hearing none, we'll now 11 12 move to our Community Impact Report by Chief Investigator 13 Warfield. 14 MR. WARFIELD: To the Chair. My apologies for not 15 being able to be there in person, but I a little bit 16 under the weather, but I certainly wanted to still make 17 this report. And before I get into the presentation that 18 will appear on your screen... 19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: One second. Is there a way that we can increase that volume? It's a bit hard to 20 21 hear. MR. WARFIELD: Testing 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8. 22 23 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay that's good. Thank you. Go right ahead. 24 MR. WARFIELD: Alright, thank you. Through the Chair. 25



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

I wanted to, again, I want to thank Secretary Shah for just outstanding support that she gives the Office of the Chief Investigator and certainly to this wonderful board for your support as well. Commissioner Hernandez always encourages us to make sure that we are ready to handle citizens who may have language barriers or other barriers. And this week was a prime example. We had someone came in who was hearing impaired, who needed to file a complaint, and certainly we want to thank the Mayor's Office. We want to thank Civil Rights Office as well. We were able to service that person through Zoom in our office with an interpreter. And so I'm very, very

13 proud to the investigators, Investigator Miser,

14 Investigator Counts who did an excellent job in setting 15 it up for us.

16 It was a walk-in citizen, and we were able to take 17 care of it. So just very proud of the team that we have behind us at Office of the Chief Investigator. Alright, 18 so my report for tonight is I want to do a couple things. 19 One, I want to talk about some tools, just one tool that 20 we use to facilitate some of our investigations. And then 21 22 secondly, of course, I want to go over the numbers as it relates to our productivity and what we do and how we do 23 it. So I just ask for your undivided attention as we move 24 25 forward. Next slide, please?



1 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Well, commissioners, you can find his presentation after tab five. Go right ahead. 2 MR. WARFIELD: Thank you, sir. The mission of our 3 office is again to fairly effectively and objectively 4 5 receive, investigate, and make recommendations regarding complaints concerning the Detroit Police Department and 6 its personnel. And it is the goal of OCI to assist in 7 improving the quality of law enforcement services by 8 instilling citizen confidence in the integrity of the 9 Detroit Police Department. Next slide, please? Tonight, 10 this is one of the tools that we use to help us in our 11 12 investigation. And this is representative of the body-13 worn camera that officers use as they're out in the field 14 working. The top picture that you see there is actually 15 one that is properly displayed on an officer's chest. And 16 then the picture that you see at the bottom, that is the mounted unit that goes in the car and that stays in the 17 18 car. Next picture please, next slide, please.

So the question is, who is required to wear body worn camera footage? Well, according to DPD policy, all sworn members at body worn camera equipped commands who have citizen interactions in the daily performances of their duty are mandated to wear body worn cameras, unless an exception is specified in this directive. And so, when are body worn cameras activated? Except as otherwise

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313.567.8100

1 provided in the directive, the body-worn camera shall be activated prior to initiating or soonest practical after 2 initiating the following police actions. And we'll go 3 over those actions in a minute. But I'm going to talk 4 5 about when can a body-worn camera be deactivated? And this is one of the things we'll talk about a little bit 6 7 more in a second here. But if a member purposefully deactivates their body-worn camera without justified 8 9 calls, they may be subject to disciplinary action. And what we mean by that is members are instructed to not 10 deactivate their body-worn cameras until that scene has 11 12 cleared until they have left the scene. Next slide, 13 please?

14 So, why shall members activate their body-worn cameras members shall activate their body-worn cameras, 15 16 to record all significant contacts with citizens, which 17 are or could be reasonably determined as pertinent regarding the performance of their official law 18 enforcement duties. So in these situations, so when we 19 say significant contacts, what is a significant contact? 20 It is calls for service, vehicle stops execution of 21 search and or arrest warrants, citizens encounters, which 22 23 necessitate police involvement. Those are some of the things that they have to record. And once activated, the 24 25 body-worn camera shall remain on and, again, that event



is completed in order to ensure the integrity of the
 recording. And then finally, failure to activate body worn camera footage.

If a member knowingly fails to activate his or her 4 5 body-worn camera, or if the member determines that the body-worn camera failed to activate, in other words, due 6 7 to a technological malfunction, the member shall document on their daily detail log why the recording was not made. 8 9 So we had talked a lot about, this board has talked a lot 10 about the importance of body-worn camera footage, and we follow the policy very strictly when we are investigating 11 12 these cases to make sure that if, for whatever reason we 13 don't have body-worn camera footage, that is documented 14 in the officer's daily detail. And if it's not 15 documented, then we do sustain the officer for that. Next 16 slide, please?

17 So, how are body-worn cameras triggered to activate? So there are few areas that actually the body-worn 18 cameras will come on automatically. If the police cruiser 19 reaches a certain speed and that speed in Detroit is 90 20 21 to 95 miles an hour, then the cameras automatically come 22 on. Another way that they are triggered is that if the 23 back doors of the cruiser opens because there are cameras 24 inside the car as well that record the back seat and the 25 front, those activate the camera as well, when the back



doors are open. When you have the emergency lights to come on, or the siren to come on, the cameras are activated. And then also, if there's hard braking, if there's like a hard stop to the vehicle, the cameras are activated. Next slide, please? And before I go into the numbers, I want to thank certainly the Chief's office, Deputy Chief Blitz.

Also want to thank from the "DO IT" team, Mr. 8 9 Melinder for answering some of the questions that I had and put in that part of my presentation together. And so 10 thank you. I want to deal with now the numbers, some of 11 the statistics that we have for October of 2023. As you 12 13 see in your file before you, we have a total of 1,323 14 open cases at OCI. Of those 1,323 cases, 450 of them are 15 within our zero to 90 day period before they reach 16 backlog status. And we have 873 cases now that are in the 17 backlog status. Now, I do want to give some definition to this because that number jumps significantly by about 260 18 cases. Those are the cases that the board said that we 19 20 need to reopen to investigate. Those are the cases that we know were closed but did not have complete 21 investigations. So we added that number to the aged 22 23 cases. And now our backlog number is 873. Next slide, 24 please?

25

When we look at our closed cases versus our





1 submitted cases versus investigators that we have on our team that's able to do investigations, I wanted to put 2 this slide in as a point of reference so that we can see 3 before picture and the workload that we do over at OCI. 4 And you see the three teams at the bottom, Senior 5 Supervising Investigator Cromwell, Acting, Supervising 6 7 Investigator Murphy, and Supervising Investigator Sloan's team. And so when you look at what they're able to do 8 9 when you look at the total cases, the total cases submitted and the investigators that are available right 10 now to do cases. And when you look at the total cases 11 12 that have been submitted, and you look at the total cases 13 that are actually closed, you looking at about 111 cases 14 for the month of October that investigators have 15 completed their investigation and turned those cases in 16 for review.

In addition to that, some of those cases had 17 actually closed. Why is that important for me to point 18 that out that way? Well, it's simply because, so that you 19 know that the workload is getting done. We do some very 20 intensive reviews of these cases so that when you're 21 signing your name to that bottom line, you know that you 22 have a very thorough investigation in front of you. And 23 24 so there are times that we have the investigators go back and revisit their findings. 25



There are times where we will you know, of course 1 consult with policy and others to make sure that what we 2 are writing in our investigations is very accurate and to 3 the point. So there are times that we have small 4 5 bottlenecks. And so as you know, once the investigator completes their investigation, it goes to their 6 supervisor. Their supervisor then reads their 7 investigation and either sends it back for corrections or 8 9 they'll send it on to our quality assurance reviewers. Our quality assurance reviewers then will really take a 10 fine look at that investigative report and then send it 11 12 to myself for final approval or for more investigation. 13 And so we have a very thorough check and balance system 14 within the office of the chief investigator. But again, 15 for the month of October, you looking at 111 cases that 16 were either submitted and or closed that month. Next 17 slide, please.

This slide right here, deals with the receipts 18 versus the closure versus our staffing. And the numbers 19 are pretty transparent there. And you're looking at from 20 January all the way to up to October of this year. We're 21 still at a record pace as it relates to the number of 22 cases that we are receiving that are coming into the 23 24 office. As it relates to the number of closed cases that 25 we're able to produce, again, we are still understaffed,



1 we're still not fully staffed.

We do have five new investigators who have just 2 completed their six months of being with OCI and then 3 obviously that's still a learning curve for them. And 4 5 they're doing a great job, by the way too. And so as they 6 are learning the craft and as they're learning what's expected you know, our numbers will improve steadily and 7 greatly. When you look at the budgeted staff, our 8 9 budgeted staff is for 18 investigators. But we are right now at 13, however, that number is really 12 because one 10 11 of our investigators we use on a month by month basis as 12 a quality assurance reviewer. So there are really 12 that 13 are in rotation at this particular time. And when you 14 look at OCI investigators the cases that we've closed in 15 2023, 808 cases to date that we've closed in 2023, and 16 we've received a total of 1,458 citizen complaints to 17 date. Next slide, please.

When we look at the total CCR allegations received 18 in October, as I think Commissioner Bell knows all too 19 well, what leads the way is procedure followed by 20 demeanor and then of course service. And those numbers 21 bear out. In the month of October, we receive 157 citizen 22 23 complaints in October, I'm sorry, that's an error. That should be October, not September, with a total of 374 24 25 allegations. And as I've said before in my report, each



1 complaint that we have, or a lot of the complaints that we have, have multiple allegations to it. And you can see 2 how it's broken down right there. Next slide, please. 3 This slide right here, a little busy, but it deals 4 5 with the allegations that are received by precinct or by unit. And at the top, obviously, you see the precincts 6 7 and then you see the various command units as well that are listed there. And you see which precincts or which 8 9 units you know, are trending in a good way. And you see those precincts or units that are trending in a not so 10 good way. And so when we use this information to share it 11 12 with the department and others so that if there's any 13 training that needs to be done, the department can do 14 training in the areas that are you know, trending, 15 especially trending in a negative way. Next slide, 16 please.

This deals with our allegations of findings. And I 17 think Chairman, you had asked for this a few meetings 18 ago. And what this deals with is what are the results of 19 our investigations, moving forward? When you look at the 20 ones that are closed again in I think September, 2023 21 this, slide is from September of 2023. When you look at 22 those that had no charge, that was 25% of those 23 allegations that came in, unfounded was 18%, sustained 24 was 15%, our administrative closures was 14%. And last 25



1 time I presented, we talked about the administrative closure investigation process. Exonerated was 11%, 2 inclusive was 8%, void was 8%, and duplicates were 1%. 3 Now duplicates and void is almost the same category. 4 5 One we catch on the front end. In other words, someone hands the complaint in about the exact same situation. 6 It's pretty much the exact same complaint. The other we 7 8 catch later because it slipped through. But void and 9 duplicate really can be one category. And again, OCI investigators closed 224 allegations in September of 2023 10 and 15 of those allegations were sustained. Next slide 11 12 please.

13 This is from October, the same graphic, but just 14 from October. And as you can see 9% of the allegations 15 that came in were sustained. And you see the other 16 numbers there. And so investigators closed 198 17 allegations in October. 9% of those allegations were sustained. I want to say this, as I talked about the 18 19 body-worn camera footage early in the presentation. That is just a great tool from the standpoint that it also 20 exonerates a number of officers from the complaints that 21 22 we get in, we're able to see the body worn camera footage the tremendous job that officers are doing through that 23 24 tool. And so we're certainly grateful to have that tool 25 in our bag. Next slide, please.



Page 24

1 This deals with allegations closed versus sustained from January of 2022, all the way up through October of 2 2023. And certainly you can see the trends there and in 3 July or August of 2022 and November, December there's a 4 little bit of a breakout there. And that was because of 5 6 some of the efforts that were going to close some of the 7 cases there. But when you look at our sustained cases, the number of cases that were sustained you can see it 8 9 there in that, I want to say almost the middle line there. And you can see that it's fairly consistent for 10 11 the most part. I would say that it average out to be about 10% of sustained cases for a year. Next slide, 12 13 please. Any questions or concerns?

14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you for such a thorough 15 report and to do so with such resilience. We do pray that 16 you feel better quickly. But we do appreciate the report, nonetheless. Any questions for Chief Investigator based 17 off of what has been presented? Commissioner Bernard. 18 19 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I just want to add a comment for our audience. Our office receives any and all 20 21 complaints that you may have about police officers. That's what the Office of the Chief Investigator does. 22 23 You call in or you send in, you can do it online or by walking into a precinct. The forms are all there. If you 24 25 or any member of your family have an issue with respect



1 to the way a police officer conducted himself, then you are welcome to come and let our office know about it. Our 2 investigators investigate it, we talk to you and you get 3 a response back. It's not just, you know, like in file 13 4 5 and it never comes up again. You will get a written 6 response back. It's very important to us. We, of course, 7 celebrate our police officers, but as we have been told by many citizens the issue of police misconduct is what 8 9 we have to focus on, because in order to protect the community, and we do. So, I just wanted to let you know 10

11 that you can do that.

12 COMMISSIONER BURTON: MR. Chair.

13 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Burton.

14 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I just want to add to that for 15 my colleague, you know, years ago, I advocated and fought 16 for citizens' complaint forms to go on the city's website, which they're located@detroitmi.gov under the 17 18 Board of Police Commissioner's page. And so you don't 19 necessarily have to, you know, get a citizen's complaint form from our officer, or, you know, you can also have 20 the opportunity to go on the city's website@detroitmi.gov 21 under the Board of Police Commissioner's page, the 22 23 citizen's complaint form is there. But we also want to hear good stories that you may have in the community 24 25 about an officer that went the extra mile. And so those



1 are good testimonials, you know that you could share with 2 the board as well. I just want you to know that as a 3 board, you know, we plan to be, you know, to be fair, 4 balanced, and your input definitely matters a lot to us. 5 Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Commissioner Bell. 6 COMMISSIONER BELL: Mr. Chairman, I think it's an 7 8 excellent report. I just want to remind the community 9 that the officers are concerned that sometime you are not accurate in terms of your report. So by all means, keep 10 that in mind. And I agree with Commissioner Burton that 11 12 officers are there 24 hours, outstanding job, as you well 13 know, not just the NPOs, but the officers in that uniform 14 patrolling every day.

15 Keep that in mind that they are there for you. And I 16 know the thousand run they make, in most cases, they do 17 an excellent job. But sometime, we only hear about the negative encounter, and by all means, that is our 18 function. But I do want to share with the commissioners a 19 position that has strongly been advocated by Mark Young, 20 Lieutenant Sergeant Association President. He appeared 21 for us quite some time, as you well know. So I want to 22 23 share this article, and there are some bad points, there are some good points, but I think the commissioners need 24 25 to be aware because they are the sergeant, lieutenant,



primarily, they're supervising these officers. So I want
 to circulate this article from the bars and strikes, not
 bars.

4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Any further 5 questions or comments for Chief Investigator? This is for 6 sitting commissioners. You'll have your opportunity 7 during public comment to make your address. Any comments 8 from, or questions from commissioners? Hearing none. 9 We'll now move on to our Chief of Police report, which 10 will also be inclusive of the Sixth Precinct

11 presentation. Deputy Chief Hayes.

12 DEPUTY CHIEF HAYES: Mr. Chair, good evening, 13 certainly to this honorable body and the residents here 14 in the community. My name is Franklin Hayes, Deputy Chief 15 of our Crime Strategies Bureau, and I will be bringing 16 you the Chief's report this evening. We want to start off 17 with our injured officers. We currently have one member of the department who is out disabled and recovering at 18 home due to on-duty injuries. This officer was shot in 19 the line of duty while responding to a call in the Ninth 20 Precinct. He is still recovering. He has a long road to 21 22 recovery.

It was mentioned at last week's meeting, his heroism was honored at the recent Above and Beyond awards just to talk about his bravery in getting the bad people off the



Page 28

1 streets. And this was his reality that he was shocked. But again, he is on the mend. And please keep words of 2 encouragement thoughts and prayers if you are a religious 3 person for this officer, as he recovers. I want to share 4 some stats with you. We are certainly working hard to 5 keep our numbers down and keep our city safe. And just a 6 7 few categories that I'd like to share with you and keep 8 you updated on that progress.

9 Homicides last year, year-to-date, we had 263 10 homicides. This year, year-to-date, we are at 220. That's 43 less victims of homicide, 43 less families that have 11 12 been impacted negatively by homicide here in our city. 13 Our non-fatal shootings. Last year to date, we were at 14 824. This year we are at 728. That's 96 less victims of non-fatal shooting in our city. Those two numbers, 15 16 homicide reflective of a 16% decrease non-fatal shooting, reflective of a 12% decrease. And we will continue to 17 drive this number down and change behaviors and decision 18 making, as it relates to these violent gun crimes. Our 19 robberies, we continue to drive this number down as well. 20 In 2022, we had 1,212 robberies. 21

This year we had 1,214, so we're up to but we are on par to address this issue. And with the same efforts that we've put into driving our homicides and non-fatal shootings down, we will continue our focus on robberies.



Page 29

1 Carjackings. Last year, year-to-date, we had 222. This year, we have 146. That is reflective of a 34% decrease 2 in carjacking. So we continue to fight crime, be where we 3 need to be to stop people from being victims, encouraging 4 5 others to make better decisions, whether it be conflict 6 resolution or just changing their mind that this isn't 7 the right decision to make. And we hope to continue with these numbers, certainly trending favorably as we make 8 Detroit a safer city. 9

10 One of the areas that we continue to support are those in need of mental health services. As far as calls 11 12 that we've responded to there are two different numbers 13 that I want to share. The first are mental health related 14 calls, which would consist of someone mental nonviolent, 15 mental violent that's armed, mental violent not armed, 16 suicide and progress and suicide threats. Last year we 17 had 1,105, I'm sorry, 11,105 calls that we responded to 18 year-to-date. This year, we are at 12,253. That's over a thousand more calls, 1,148 to be exact this time this 19 year compared to this time last year. So again, we are 20 21 doing the best we can, leveraging our relationships, our 22 partners into mental health support community to get those in need, the services that they deserve, being 23 24 mindful that mental health is not a crime.

25 There's another set or overdose related calls,



Page 30

1 whether it's yeah, so our overdose, whether it is drug 2 overdose or one down. Last year, year-to-date, we had 5,344. This year we had 5,408. That's 64 additional calls 3 for that. So again, with our partnerships with DWIN and 4 5 so many others, we are working to get those, whether it's mental health, whether it's substance abuse, whatever 6 help that is that they need, we continue to leverage 7 those relationships as we see the increase in the call 8 9 for the services are there, we're doing our very best to get them that help. Just a few significance events I'd 10 11 like to update the community on. The first is a fatal 12 stabbing that, quite frankly, the entire world's eyes were on the City of Detroit a few weeks back that 13 14 happened in the 1300 block of Joliet Place where we 15 received a call for an unresponsive individual lying on 16 the ground.

17 The emergency medical personnel later declared the victim, deceased on the scene. And while at the location, 18 officers discovered a trail of blood leading them inside 19 the victim residence, where the crime is believed to have 20 occurred. An examination of the body led to discovery of 21 multiple stab wounds, and the victim was a prominent 22 23 community leader. Our investigators worked diligently with the FBI to forensically analyze all of the 24 information obtained to ascertain the timeline that 25



1 ultimately led to the decedent's death, Samantha Wall. As 2 an update, yesterday a suspect was arrested. The 3 detectives and Wayne County prosecutors are currently gathering additional information regarding this case and 4 working together until the investigation's conclusion. If 5 6 anyone still has any information, even though we do have 7 a person in custody please contact Crime Stoppers or 1800 8 Speak Up.

I want to talk about a felonious assault nonfatal 9 shooting that occurred on November 3rd in the 13,000 10 block of Dwyer. Officers, while en route to this location 11 12 were flagged down and spoke to the victim, an Uber 13 driver. The victim stated that he picked up the suspect 14 on Fenelon Street and was taking him to his home on Dwyer 15 Street when the subject pulled a handgun and struck him 16 twice in the head. The victim exited the vehicle, at which point the suspect fired shots at the victim. The 17 victim, a CPL holder, produced his firearm and fired 18 19 shots at the suspect. The suspect escaped on foot and left the location by the time the officers had arrived. 20 The victim was treated at the scene by the medics for a 21 large laceration to the side of his head. And the 22 detectives, the work began. While they were doing the 23 24 work, a call for service came out for the 13,000 block of 25 Dwyer for a suspect that was shot.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

What they discovered was that the suspect who was originally there was later transported to Detroit Receiving Hospital. And it was there that we verified that the person shot was the individual that struck the Uber driver in the head. Suspect was treated in the emergency room, and then from there, he was taken into custody and at the detention center for processing. On Sunday, November 5th a warrant was submitted to the Wayne

8 Sunday, November 5th a warrant was submitted to the Wayne 9 County prosecutors for review. The suspect was arraigned 10 at 36 District Court on November 6th for the following 11 charges, assault with intent to murder, assault with 12 intent to rob while armed assault with intent to do great 13 bodily harm, less than murder, weapons carrying concealed 14 assault with a dangerous weapon and felony firearms, 15 looks like habitual force.

16 A couple things going on in the community lens. At 17 the Twelfth Precinct on Tuesday, November 7th the NPOs had a gun lock delivery program where they informed the 18 community through social media that we were delivering 19 gun locks right to their door if they requested it. If 20 21 you couldn't be there, then to called 596 1400 or 596 1221. I know we're not in the 12, but this program is 22 still here, and they have plenty of gun locks. As you'll 23 meet your new Sixth Precinct Commander here shortly, as 24 25 well as the captain, they have them too, but if not those



1 numbers, I gave work. And we'll get number 12 to drop
2 some off at number six here, and we'll get you some gun
3 locks. In the Third Precinct, on the same date, they had
4 coffee with the Commander Michael Chambers of the Third
5 Precinct where citizens came out, voiced concerns and met
6 their NPOs and their command staff. Commander Chambers is
7 relatively new at the Third Precinct as well.

8 And then yesterday in partnership with Chief White, 9 in partnership with Chief Baron from Southfield, as well as the Chief from Oak Park in Farmington Hills, and the 10 11 Wayne County Sheriff. They were together for Domestic 12 Violence Roundtable, where local law enforcement, along 13 with court and healthcare professionals, discussed ways 14 to reduce domestic violence. Mr. Chair I will obviously 15 yield back to you for questions, but after this portions 16 conclude, I would like to invite up the commander and captain, the leadership here of the Sixth Precinct, 17 18 Commander Vernal Newsom, and Captain Michael Diseco, at 19 your direction, sir.

20 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. We'll take 21 potential questions from our commissioners for the 22 Chief's report, and then we'll invite the commander and 23 captain up. Commissioner Moore.

24 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Chief 25 Hayes, last week, the Chief was present. He stated that



Page 34

he would have a report on facial recognition to the
 board. Do we know the status of that report?
 DEPUTY CHIEF HAYES: Through the Chair. A document

4 was submitted to my understanding for the information5 that was requested. And that has been sent through6 channels to your office.

7 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Okay. My second question, the 48 8 hour rule as it relates to arrests, you mentioned the 9 Samantha Woll's homicide. Can you explain to the public 10 what the 48 hour rule is as it relates to holding 11 suspects without a warrant?

DEPUTY CHIEF HAYES: So there are two numbers, and 12 13 actually there's a 48 hour, and then there's a 72 hour 14 piece that I must speak, just to kind of put it all in 15 context. Michigan State law dictates that from the time a 16 person is arrested, they have 48 hours to be arraigned. 17 There's another 24 hours in which once they are 18 arraigned, that hearing must happen for a total of 72. 19 However, there are exceptions. In the instance of, perhaps, and we could use circumstances similar to the 20 incident with the Uber driver. 21

It is possible that in that 48 hours, the person is at the hospital, medical treatment may be rendered, or they may be an issue where they're incapacitated to where there may be an asterisk or an exception to the 48 hour



Page 35

1 rule. And if we get to 48 or that 72, then we may do
2 what's called a "Not in custody warrant," meaning that
3 time has expired. And then from that, once they are clear
4 from their medical treatment, then at that point they
5 would be arrested for the charge, and a warrant
6 submitted. I'm sorry, a warrant submitted after they have
7 left.

COMMISSIONER MOORE: And one quick question, my last 8 9 question. Dealing with the Second Precinct Deputy Chief, there's been a lot of movement. I'm just going to echo 10 11 with Deputy Commissioner Penal stated last week at the 12 board meeting, there's been a lot of movement at the 13 Second Precinct. Citizens can't get a chance to relate to 14 the commander. The commander tonight was at the Second 15 Precinct just two weeks ago. So what are we doing to 16 notify the citizens proactively of the movements taking 17 place in the precinct? Of course, that is the Chief's prerogative. At the same time, the city's charter says, 18 we should be submitted to the people, the police 19 20 department should be submitted to the people. So what can 21 we do to prevent these further actions from happening 22 again?

DEPUTY CHIEF HAYES: Through the Chair. Once the Chief, by the way, Commander Newson, you obviously left some big shoes to fill at the Second Precinct, but when



Page 36

1 movement is made, we do our very best to update, and meet the community, and formally introduce ourselves. And 2 that's evidenced by Commander Chambers who just had 3 coffee with the commander. He's the new commander at the 4 5 Third Precinct. And he had that open house for that meet 6 and greet. So I can assure you that that will happen at 7 the Second Precinct very soon. And going forward across the city, we would do our very best understanding that 8 there may be an affinity or a relationship to a certain 9 command officer, but overall, it's the needs that the 10 11 department can best serve the entire city.

12 So sometimes decisions are made, sometimes it may be 13 because someone's doing a great job and we need that 14 skill set and another opportunity, and it could be some 15 that quite frankly, aren't doing the best job, and there 16 are areas of opportunity that we can perhaps send someone else to do it. We have retirement. There are a couple 17 different things as to why that change may be, but we 18 19 will do our very best to be transparent, keep the community, anyone affected by those movements updated and 20 21 that connectivity there so we can continue to work together, commissioner. 22

COMMISSIONER MOORE: Just to clarify, I believe
 Commander Newson just came in and the Sixth Precinct
 residents are going to love Commander Newson. He came in



Page 37

giving out a cell phone number. He is coming to community 1 meetings. So we just need that same type of energy at the 2 Second Precinct where citizens can have access to the 3 4 commander. Thank you, sir. CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner, if you're not 5 6 getting it, please let me know. 7 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Got you. CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Any further questions from the 8 9 Chief's report? COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair. 10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Burton? 11 12 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Yeah, I have a question to the 13 Chief. Chief, question for you is, when it comes to 14 Secure City's partnership, where's the department, what's 15 the department's thoughts about the Secure City 16 partnership and how is that working in Detroit? DEPUTY CHIEF HAYES: Through the Chair. Please excuse 17 my ignorance. I don't know the specifics of the program 18 you've mentioned. However we continue to work and embrace 19 any initiative that we can to make our city safe. So I 20 can do my homework and certainly get that before Chief 21 White and certainly he can share his prerogative as to 22 that program and how it would fit here in the city. 23 24 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Any further questions? And 25 hearing none, we're so looking forward to welcoming the



captain and commander of the Sixth Precinct. Come right
 on up.

3 COMMANDER NEWSON: Thank you very much. Thank you very much. And thank you Chief good evening board 4 5 commissioner. My name is Vernal Newson and I am the commander, the new commander of the Sixth Precinct. 6 Although I'm no stranger to District 7. I've worked with 7 several tremendous citizens in this area and made some 8 9 great relationships. So it's an honor for me to come before you and talk about the project that I have in mind 10 for the Sixth Precinct. So I would like to start off, if 11 12 you don't mind, sir?

13 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Go right ahead.

COMMANDER NEWSON: Let me give you a little bio of 14 15 the Sixth Precinct. The Sixth Precinct is located at 16 11450 Warwick Street at the corner of Plymouth and Warwick. I'm sorry. There we go. The square mileage of 17 the precinct is approximately 14.2 square miles with 18 approximately 80,000 citizens that we serve, which 19 20 encompasses 12 scout car areas. We have a total of 18 21 schools, 4 high schools. A tremendous amount of stakeholders that are involved and help us do our day-to-22 23 day operation. Also included in my staff, I would like to 24 introduce commander, I'm sorry, captain, maybe that means 25 something, Captain Michael Chambers, who's no stranger to



District 7, and to the Sixth Precinct, I'm sorry, Lee, I
 apologize, Diseco, Michael Diseco. Also Lee Brown, the
 NPO sergeant.

He has been a great help to me. This is only my 9th 4 5 day here, so please bear with me. I would like to get 6 into some stats, if we will; just talk a little bit about some of the great work that's been done here at the Sixth 7 Precinct. In terms of murder we are just at 10% under the 8 9 year's total which is looking pretty good. And with our non-fatal shootings, we are just 10% up with a 29% 10 11 closure rate. The detectives are doing an outstanding job 12 and getting our suspects in custody. With aggravated 13 assaults, we are just at 7.4% for the 28 day period, 14 we're under at 17%.

15 For our burglaries, we are down, well 0.2%. And our 16 larcenies, we are also down just under a percent there. 17 One great comment I would like to make about statistics here is motor vehicle theft, which I used to work at a 18 commercial auto theft and I worked there for 18 years. 19 Auto theft has always been a problem in the City of 20 21 Detroit, but this is the first year that I can report 22 that we are actually 15.6% down in auto theft in the 23 Sixth Precinct. That's great.

A total percentage is at 20.6% overall for part one crime. We are down in that percentage. I want to



1 highlight also in our carjackings, carjackings for the 2 Sixth Precinct is down 13%. So that's another tremendous hurdle there. Some of the strategies implemented for the 3 Sixth Precinct as part of any commander's initiative or 4 strategy going into a precinct, he should always have 5 something and be prepared to respond to community 6 7 involvement, enforcement, traffic. Traffic is always a 8 big discussion with the community, as well as the 9 proactive engagements to help with certain issues related 10 to quality of life. So with that, I want to speak to the 11 number of guns that we confiscated thus far for 2023, and 12 that's 244 guns taken off the street. Yeah, that's pretty 13 good. With that and our partnerships and our strategy in 14 restore order operations, we work closely with organized 15 crime with the Department of Corrections, MDOC, the Wayne 16 County Prosecutor's Office, the Legacy Unit, Ceasefire, 17 and our new partnership with the ShotSpotters who help us with the non-fatal shootings, and that's Detroit 300. 18 19 Yes.

20 And also for Detroit. We are, something that I 21 brought over, I'm actually bringing over from the Second 22 Precinct, is what we call the aftercare. The aftercare is 23 going to include our detectives, social workers, our 24 chaplains, and that's for a collaboration to provide 25 services to victims of aggravated assaults after the



1 offense, primarily focusing on repeat offenders or repeat victims, if you will. In our numbers for aggravated 2 assault, we see where it is continually the same victim 3 or same offender that's involved in the crime. Some of 4 the positive activities taking place or that have taken 5 place, thanks to Sergeant Brown and his staff, the Anti 6 7 bullying committee reading to the children in the 8 elementary schools, conflict resolution that's really big 9 in the community, with our NPOs and a council, positive 10 police encounters.

11 The Deputy Chief spoke about gun locks, we passed 12 out 175 gun locks, and we have many more. So the Sixth 13 Precinct, we have gun locks for you if you need any. We 14 also participated in the Blight Coalition, the Explorers 15 program, the Sisterhood program, and we have what we call 16 our Youth Summit program, which is similar to the 17 Brotherhood program at the Eighth Precinct. Also, we 18 participated and we are rolling out again the community 19 closet for the holidays. So we look forward to doing 20 that. Some of the events that are coming up here, this on 21 Saturday, November the 11th, there will be a Breakfast 22 with the veterans. We will sit down and have breakfast 23 with the veterans, and that's going to be located at 24 15858 Joy Road, the Village of St. Martha's. Also coming up, we have three events that will take place on 25



Saturday, November 18th at 10:00 AM. Each event, actually
 will start at 10.

We will be participating and giving away 700 turkeys 3 at the CNS Healthcare, located at 15560 Joy Road. That's 4 one location. The other location is going to be the Cody 5 Rouge Community Resource Center, and that's going to be 6 7 at 19321 West Chicago Avenue. And also Councilman Dural 8 will roll out a turkey giveaway for us as well at the 9 Boys Club at 16500 Retirement. And we expect a tremendous 10 turnout at those events. And on Monday, November 20th at 11 10:00 AM at 19321 West Chicago, the Suzanne's Cody Rouge 12 community will have a turkey basket and dinner that day. 13 So that's an opportunity for folks to come out and to 14 mingle and talk about some of the issues in the community 15 there. Goodfellas start up on December the 7th. We're 16 excited about that. It'll run through the 21st of 17 December. And our team will be out on the corners 18 offering for sale the Goodfellas newspapers.

Also, what we're doing at the Sixth Precinct this year, we are adopting two families. So that's going to be another one of our ventures for this holiday season. And myself, I will participate as well in all of the events, as we all know, I will be there. And one thing I want to stress is we talk about the complaints. If anyone should have a complaint regarding an officer at the Sixth



1 Precinct, just as I did at the Second Precinct, please feel free not only to make the registry with the 2 complaint, but you also call me. Please call me. And I 3 would like to, if you don't mind, sir, give my number 4 5 out. That is (313) 236 7615. They laugh because we always joke about that when I give out my number. It's (313) 236 6 7 7615. That's all I have.

CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you so very much. Yes, 8 9 Captain, come right on up, Captain.

CAPTAIN DISECO: How you doing, everybody? So I'm 10 sure most of you in the room knows that former commander 11 12 Arnold Williams is elevated to Deputy Chief and we have 13 an amazing replacement with Commander Newson. He's hit 14 the ground running right off the bat. He's got my full 15 support. I'm going to do everything I can to help him as 16 much as I can. But I think he's got this licked, he's 17 been around a bit longer than me, overall. So he's a Rockstars. So we're in good hands here at the Sixth, and 18 19 I'm just happy to work here. It's a great place to work and great officers and appreciate you guys' support. 20

21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Alright, so, any questions for the Sixth Precinct? I have one. That 22 amazing news about confiscating 244 guns out of the 23 neighborhood. My question is, it's excellent, excellent. 24 25 What happens to the firearms?





COMMANDER NEWSON: So the firearms are destroyed 1 after the case is adjudicated and we go through the legal 2 process, all the firearms are destroyed. 3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Excellent. Thank you so very 4 5 much. Any other questions? Alright, hearing none, thank 6 you for your report, both commander and captain. You have some excellent leadership over here. You all should be 7 very, very proud. Alright, now we will move on to oral 8 9 comment or well, oral communication, public comment. Mr. Brown, how many do we have? 10 MR. BROWN: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair and this 11 12 honorable board. We currently have 11 speakers, and I'll 13 call those in attendance. We have 8 in attendance and 3 14 on Zoom, 4 on Zoom, now. Ms. Shanita Williams, followed by Black Bag Ru, followed by Mr. James Ford. 15 16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Right. And so just to remind 17 the public, you have two minutes for your public comment. MS. WILLIAMS: Good evening everyone. 18 19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good evening. MS. WILLIAMS: Okay. I'd like to talk about the issue 20 I've been having concerning Detroit police officers. When 21 22 I be parked in MGM parking structure, I complained to

OCI, I've been to the police department complaining about 23 officers breaking into my car, my weapons being there, 24

25 and they're not just the Detroit Police Department



1 officers, MGM and Liberty Security. And I'm going to file a police report on that. I have an issue every time you 2 3 come in my car, you damage my vehicle, you mess with my weapons. And are you putting an illegal device in my car? 4 5 I don't know. But I complain about this constantly, every 6 time I go make a police report. This is nothing new. And 7 also it's going on three years' concerning people stalking me. When it first started, I went to the Twelfth 8 Precinct, not just the police department, but citizens 9 stalk me through social media. 10

So that's going on 3 years, it'll be three years 11 12 last than two months. I wrote a letter to the Board of 13 Commissioners, OCI and the Chief of Police. And this 14 person who I always speak to, her name is Nikita Wilson, 15 continue to have people stalking me, all type of illegal 16 stuff that she's behind and that I always speak on. And then I also like to talk about Internal Affairs 17 concerning the police officers following me in civilian 18 vehicles, if not Internal Affairs do their job correctly, 19 I shouldn't have to be going through this. Now, let me go 20 back to people following me for 3 years as there are a 21 lot of crazy people out here and I went to try to diffuse 22 the situation, but like I said, if I'm in fear of my 23 life, you know what I'm saying? I came here to diffuse 24 25 the situation, but apparently it's not being taken care



1 of correctly like it should.

2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. That's your time.

3 MS. WILLIAMS: Okay.

4 MR. BROWN: Mr. Ru, followed by James Ford, Mr. Ru, 5 followed by Mr. Ford.

6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Right on up.

MR. RU: Hey, Willie Bell, before you get up out of 7 here, I see you easing your way out. You know, you read a 8 whole one person touring committee on the Board of Police 9 Commissioners, right? And you the director of the housing 10 trap over there across from the hospital, right? And then 11 12 you cover up the cover up the Kenisha Coleman's murder. 13 I'd like to welcome the newest members to the board. 14 QuanTez Presley. Hey, guess what? Sloppy toppy. Brian 15 Ferguson was sitting in that seat that you sitting in, 16 and he told me he couldn't call Michigan State Police in 17 because the law department told him, he advised him he couldn't. 18

19 This Board of Police Commissioners need your own 20 lawyer because if the law department is telling the 21 chairman of the Board of Police Commissioners that they 22 can't pick up the phone and do what Mr. Ricardo Moore did 23 on his own without asking anybody when he called in the 24 United States Attorney to investigate this board. Lisa 25 Carter, Linda Bernard talking to you all. Annie Holt now



1 where is Jesus Hernandez? Now what we got going on is Rebecca McKay over at the New Commander over at the 2 Eleventh Precinct, same officer brought those charges 3 against Robert Cormac. Officer Fitzpatrick promoted to 4 5 Sergeant. She's moved on now. I'm in court on two different cases. Well, two different courtrooms, four 6 different cases two disorderly conducts and one 7 trespassing. And to everybody in the room, citizens' 8 9 residence, watching, listening, I didn't break any laws nor committed no crimes this time. Now in 1997, that was 10 a different story. They shot my aunt, and the police 11 12 covered it up. They said that she raised a 38.

13 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: That's your time.

14 MR. RU: Yeah. Okay.

15 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.

16 MR. BROWN: Mr. Ford, followed by Ms. Christiana Williams, I mean Banks, followed by Ms. Charice Greer. 17 MR. FORD: If you don't mind, I want to just turn 18 this mic around just a little bit. I'm really proud of 19 20 the Detroit Police Department. I'm going to be very 21 honest with you. I'm James Ford from the Obama weekend. I just want to say this, you know, you email DoorDash, 22 GrubHub, Steak 'n Shake and everything else, but now I'd 23 24 like you to send me an email to

25 detroitredlights@gmail.com. Again,



Page 48

1 detroitredlights@gmail.com. You have 20,000 car accidents here a year. You have 156 people killed a year by cars. 2 That's almost three a week. That's a high rate. And the 3 drag racing and red lights is the cause of this. 4 5 Please, I would like, if you can, send me just an 6 email, just be a sentence or a paragraph to detroitredlights@gmail.com. Please, I want to take a 7 hundred people, I want to take a hundred letters to 8 9 Lansing saying that we're tired of this, we can't take it anymore. For you people that didn't get it. Again, 10 detroitredlights@gmail.com, or you can call me at (586) 11 12 918-3061. The Detroit Police Department is doing their 13 job. And I think so, but we have to try to get these red 14 lights taken care of and get some stuff done. I've got 15 Senator Chang working with me and other people working 16 with me. We want to go in June. Again, Gmail, 17 Detroitredlights@gmail.com. My phone number is (586) 918 3061. Give me a call. This is a very serious situation. 18 As I said, try your best. You email everything else. Take 19 your time. You email the casinos and everything else. 20 Detroit Gmail, I mean detroitredlights@gmail.com. My 21 phone number is (586) 918 3061. 22

23 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. That is your time.24 MR. FORD: Thank you.

25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.



MR. BROWN: Ms. Banks, followed by Ms. Charice Greer,
 Ms. Banks.

3 MS. BANKS: Hello everybody.

CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Hello. Go right ahead. 4 MS. BANKS: So I'm with the 11th Precinct, but my 5 6 problem is like a whole Detroit DPD DUI problem. I think 7 there is a problem with the way we handle and treat domestic violence cases, mostly because they go up 8 9 steadily every year in the culture around domestic violence. And as somebody who dealt with DPD while going 10 through a domestic violence situation while I was a child 11 12 and seeing it matriculate, I would just like to say first 13 and foremost, we can say that the police are doing their 14 job. I think that's fine, but I think we can also get 15 better at things. And I think one thing we can get better 16 at is the culture of how we treat domestic violence victims, how we view domestic violence victims, and 17 offering them resources. I think one thing that DPD 18 should improve on is how they talk to domestic violence 19 victims, how they protect them, and how they shelter them 20 after the fact. So we can go down on femicide rates 21 domestic abuse rates, and also child abuse rates. So 22 23 yeah, that was my comment, and now I'm finished. 24 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Very thankful for your 25 comment. And if you have an agenda you will see that the



Page 50

1 policy committee meets on Tuesday, November the 21st. And that's our opportunity to create policy that helps to 2 control the operations of DPD. And so this is our policy 3 chair, Commissioner Bernard, and I'm sure she will 4 welcome any recommendations or suggestions you might 5 have. Thank you. 6 MR. BROWN: Ms. Greer, followed by Ms. Lucretia 7 Montgomery, followed by Mr. Foster, followed by Mr. 8 9 Arthur Edge.

10 MS. GREER: Hello?

11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Hello, go right ahead.

12 MS. GREER: My cousin was murdered.

13 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Can you talk a little bit more 14 into the mic there?

MS. GREER: My cousin was murdered on October 1st by hit and run. Her name is Charmel Montgomery. No one came to speak to her mother to investigate the murder, the people who were with her. The mom had to call several times just to get a report made. And we're still looking for justice for my cousin. Thank you.

21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: So sorry for your loss. Do you 22 know the precinct that they live in? This precinct. Okay, 23 so there are some individuals here I'm sure can get in 24 contact with you to follow up with that family relative 25 to that incident. But our condolences to you and your



1 family.

2 MR. BROWN: Ms. Greer, followed by Mr. Foster.

3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Mr. Brown.

4 MR. BROWN: Ms. Greer.

5 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Ms. Greer.

6 MR. BROWN: Okay, so she's okay. Ms. Montgomery.

7 MS. MONTGOMERY: Well, my name is Lucretia

Montgomery. I am the mother of Charmel Montgomery. The 8 girl that was murdered October the first, who my cousin 9 was just speaking about. My daughter murder was not 10 investigated until 33 days later after she was hit by a 11 car on Grand River and Patton. I haven't even met any 12 13 detectives. Witnesses have put stuff on the Facebook, 14 left telephone numbers and everything, and now they have 15 deleted their Facebook pages. And 33 days later, the 16 police department is now starting to investigate. Crime Stoppers, Detective Swab is on my daughter's case. 17

18 I never seen him. I never met him, but at my daughter's repass, when there was a fight and the police 19 20 was called and someone was shot, he was there. I still haven't seen him. I appreciate now, after 33 days when I 21 made a complaint against the Sixth Precinct, because no 22 23 one never... I watched my daughter die 17 times in the hospital. The ambulance took her away from lovely vibes 24 at 1: 32 in the morning, and at 22:48, my daughter took 25



her last breath. And to this day, I still have not met
 any detective. My daughter has three children.

My daughter went to Triumph Church. She was a law by 3 4 the citizen, me and her pay taxes. I done seen ring 5 doorbells, find dogs that got stolen and it had been 33 days and these car just got put on the TV. You all say it 6 take 48 hours to find the criminal. Nobody looked for the 7 criminal. I can't sleep you all. What I'm going to tell 8 9 my daughter's three sons. It was my son's birthday on the day she died and her 14 year old son turned 14, 11 days 10 later, and now his daddy in the hospital with a bacterial 11 12 infection. I have to leave here and take care him there 13 to say bye to his daddy. My cousin Mark Greer trained the 14 police. My daddy fought in the war. You all please find 15 these killers. My birthday was October 9th. My son died 16 in his sleep, but not somebody who murdered my daughter. 17 This the second child. I'm not reaping nothing I sowed.

18 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: We're so sorry.

MS. MONTGOMERY: Look on the cameras and find these people, you all. That's all I'm asking.

21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Deputy Chief Hayes is getting 22 ready to connect with you to make sure you get the 23 information that you're looking for.

24 MR. BROWN: Mr. Foster.

25 MR. FOSTER: Good evening.



1	CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good evening.
2	MR. FOSTER: First off, my condolences go to young
3	lady in her family. And I just want to first say that
4	it's not the police responsibility to console her. It's
5	all of our responsibility as a community to see what she
6	needs and console her. That's first and foremost.
7	Secondly, I just want to say Happy Veterans Day to any of
8	my fellow veterans who are here and had served, and just
9	wish you all a happy holiday. Just leave you a quote or
10	requote from Martin Luther King. "One may well ask, how
11	can you advocate breaking some laws and obeying others?"
12	The answer lies in the fact that there are two type of
13	laws, just and unjust. I would be the first to advocate,
14	obeying just laws. One has not only illegal, but a moral
15	responsibility to obey just laws. Conversely, one has a
16	moral responsibility to disobey unjust laws.
17	I would agree with St Augustine that an unjust law

17 I would agree with St. Augustine that an unjust law is no law at all. Now what is the difference between the 18 19 two? How does one determine whether a law is just or 20 unjust? A just law of manmade code that squares with the 21 moral law or the law of God? An unjust law is a code that 22 is out of harmony with the moral law. To put it in terms 23 of St. Thomas Akin, an unjust law is a human law that is 24 not rooted in eternal law and natural law. Any law that uplifts human personality is just any law that degrades 25



Page 54

human personality is unjust. I ask you all to go down and 1 advocate to legislators, remove any unjust laws from 2 these books and replace them with just laws, and be good 3 law enforcement officer out here. Thank you all for 4 listening. 5 6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. MR. BROWN: Mr. Edge. 7 MR. EDGE: Good evening everyone. 8 9 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good evening. MR. EDGE: My name is Arthur Edge. I'm President of 10 Far West Detroit Civic Association, Vice President, 11 12 Friends of Rouge Park, and part of the Detroit 300 with 13 ShotSpotters. I just want to thank the board tonight for 14 the great job that they're doing, and I want to thank our 15 Commissioner Ricardo Moore for honoring these women. We 16 have a lot of strong women here. You ladies, give 17 yourself a hand for the great work that you're doing. 18 Deputy Chief Hayes had to step away and I want to thank him for what he's doing. I've known him since he was a 19 kid, and I want to thank him. He got the mobile what was 20 that? The mobile, I can't even read my own right. 21 2.2 The Mobile Field Force. They were blowing up bombs 23 in Rouge Park and he got that moved and I just want to 24 thank him. I'll catch him in the hall and give him

25 another thanks for that. But the main reason I'm standing



1 up here tonight is for our new commander, Mr. Newsome. Thank you, sir. Thank you for coming here. We have had a 2 lot of great commanders and we made them shine, and we 3 are here to make you shine. You work with us, we're going 4 5 to work with you. And I just congratulating you for coming over here to the Sixth Precinct. Thank you. 6 7 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. MR. BROWN: Mr. Chair, your last five speakers, we'll 8 all be on Zoom, starting with Minister Eric Blunt, 9 followed by DC CAC member, Scotty Bowman. 10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Minister Blunt, are you there 11 12 Minister Blunt. Blunt. Going once, going twice. We'll 13 come back around to Minister Blunt. 14 MR. BROWN: DC member, Scotty Bowman. 15 MR. BOWMAN: Hello everyone. First of all, I would 16 like to thank the number of people that I have heard secondhand, really. I just kind of found out like people 17 saying, "Hey you know, people are trying to advise that 18 you get appointed to fill vacancies on the Board of 19 Police Commissioners." I thank those people for their 20 enthusiasm and their support. I am currently in the 21 Office of Community Advisory Council and I'm a person and 22 I'm secretary on that board right now. And right now, I'm 23 in fact working on the minutes for that organization. And 24 25 so I just wanted to thank people for their support, but



1 also say that, you know, I have other obligations right 2 now and those obligations are for the office to which 3 I've been elected and I've scheduled myself around that 4 office until the conclusion of my term after that, who 5 knows?

6

7 But I just wanted to say that's what the situation was and why I didn't apply for that post this time 8 9 around. Now, on a more important matter, I've heard community members tonight talking about poor response and 10 11 not just response time on the scene, but I mean response 12 as far as follow up and investigation regarding 13 homicides. I mean, this is the most severe crime. Violent 14 crime needs to be taken seriously in the city. Violent 15 crime is the reason the city has many other problems. 16 People don't invest in a city where they don't feel safe. People don't move into a city where they don't feel 17 18 safe unless they feel like there's nowhere else they can 19 go. That is the problem we're facing here. And, you know, it goes back too. I mean, still, you know, like we heard 20 Motor City Ru talking about Keneisha Coleman. I have 21 never heard any follow up on that. He's coming again and 22 again, it's like a broken record, but I haven't heard the 23 follow up. I haven't heard any response from the office, 24 25 from the police about this. Thank you.



Page 57

1 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.

2 MR. BROWN: Mr. Chair, I don't see the caller with 3 the last three numbers. 315. So I go to former 4 Commissioner William Davis, followed by person with the 5 acronym NTP 313. Mr. Davis.

6 FORMER COMMISSIONER MR. DAVIS: Good evening. Can I
7 be heard?

8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes, you can go right ahead. FORMER COMMISSIONER MR. DAVIS: Okay. I'd like to 9 start off by saying my heart goes out to the young lady 10 that lost her child. I hope that you all can handle it. 11 12 And U will do everything I can to assist her. You know, 13 not just the police, but also the Board of Police 14 Commissioners. Also, I was pleased to see that you all 15 have youth that you all are working with and you are 16 doing something with them. You know, we need to be doing 17 more with our youth. Also as a former elected police commissioner for District 7, and the Sixth Precinct was 18 one of my favorite precincts. I know there are a lot of 19 very capable, outstanding individuals over there, and I 20 21 was pleased to see that some of them, just some of them 22 got recognition today and they are well deserved. Also 23 for those who may not know for the Second Precinct, 24 there's going to be a coffee with a cop this coming 25 Saturday from 12 to 2 with the new commander, the new



1	captain, and hopefully a new neighborhood police officer.
2	We continue to try to do things over here. In fact,
3	your new commander was just at our Bar McFarland meeting
4	last month. Normally at Bar McFarland, we meet the second
5	Friday of every month. This month we're not meeting the
б	second Friday. We're going to meet the third Friday. And
7	we all need to be asking everybody to take an active role
8	in our communities because we can make Detroit better,
9	but it takes all of us working. Thank you.
10	CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.
11	MR. BROWN: Caller with the acronym NTP313.
12	CALLER NTP313: Yes. Hello, my name is Tiffany
13	Thompson. How are you all doing tonight?
14	CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Great, go right ahead.
15	CALLER NTP313: Alright. I was making a comment of
16	I've been teaching in the community for about 20 years,
17	and my son has been getting abused by his father. His
18	father is a son of a former police officer. His name is
19	Dolly Linton, III. And my son's name is
20	CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: If you could refrain from
21	using a personal name.
22	CALLER NTP313: Yeah.
23	CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: When making your public
24	comment.
25	CALLER NTP313: Yes, I can. So my son, he's only



1 three years old and he's been burned by his father, second degree burns to the face. And the officer who was 2 over the Child Abuse Unit Sharon Johnson, she has not 3 given me the safety plan for my son, a copy that the 4 5 courts need just to put on file. She has not given me that. So I was just wondering how can I get that safety 6 7 plan and if someone can, you know, get ahold of that safety plan because it's very important in my civil case 8 9 right now. So I just want to, you know, make you all aware of that. 10

11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. DC Hayes, how would 12 you inform her to get that report?

13 DEPUTY CHIEF HAYES: Actually, I met the caller last 14 night at the event in Southfield. It is best to certainly 15 support follow up, is what quite frankly, anyone who's a 16 victim of a crime is owed. So we will certainly do that. As it relates to document, there was indication that 17 there was a civil piece that they're looking for. We will 18 do everything that we can in the civil, in the criminal 19 investigation to make sure that all the I's were dotted 20 and T's were crossed, but I can't speak to the civil case 21 22 in any supplement she might need.

23 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.

24 CALLER NTP313: Okay, thank you.

25 MR. BROWN: The last speaker would be Ms. Alana



1 Spencer from the APP.

2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Ms. Spencer? Ms. Spencer, are 3 you there?

MS. SPENCER: Yeah. Hey, I'm just about to unmute. I'm sorry I'm not there tonight. I work nights for Amazon and I'm a Wayne State student. I'm on the youth advisory panel. I just wanted to thank you all for the award that you all presented, and I'm sorry I'm not able to be there. Thank you again.

10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Well, thank you.

MR. BROWN: Mr. Chair that was your last speaker.
CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Is Mr. Blunt, Minister Blunt
there?

14 MR. BROWN: Try again.

15 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Minister Blunt, are you there, 16 Mr. Blunt, are you there? We do apologize for whatever 17 inconvenience that may have prevented you from making your public comment. But we do trust that you'll be at 18 the next meeting and if it is the will of the colleagues, 19 we can compensate you for your lost time today. With 20 21 that, we'll now move to the presentation to the board from the Sixth Precinct Police Community Relations 2.2 23 Counsel Ms. Mary McGee.

MS. MCGEE: Good afternoon and thanks for everybody coming. I just love the Sixth Precinct. We are family.



1 Look how we show up for each other. And this is not just 2 today, this is all the time. There are different organizations Block Clubs, community organizations. We 3 come together as one. We attend each other's meeting. And 4 5 also, our CB Patrol as well. We attend each other's meetings so we can spread the wealth of information to 6 keep this community together. And so far, thank God, 7 8 we're on a very positive road. It's a long road, but we 9 have each other to shoulder. And I have basically lived in this area all of my adult life. And personally, I'm 10 11 not moving. I love my community. I love what I do. I love 12 the corporation that I get from each individual. You 13 know, we can put things together at the last minute. No 14 problem. They come, they go like, what do you need next? 15 I know I only have 10 minutes, but this is a beautiful 16 place to live. I wouldn't live any place else. Board of 17 the Police Commissioner, I see a lot of faces that's been 18 around a long time too, Mr. Bell.

And I'm glad to have you around. I am glad that we have a new commander. I personally have issues with, we train them and the Chief takes them away. In fact, I think you at the Sixth Precinct as well. I know we have excellent people and we do have this camaraderie with our officers, our NPOs Sergeant Lee. Let them stay around a little longer, please. Thank you. Welcome. Beautiful



meeting. Very informative. Excellent job, Board of Police
 Commissioners. Ricardo, excellent, job well done. Thank
 you.

CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Could you help us
with just one question if there are any more questions,
but your meeting date and times, just in case there's
somebody who's listening who wants to show up?

MS. MCGEE: Our meeting is the last Wednesday of 8 9 every month, and we're meeting by team. Unfortunately, like most areas, we've lost a lot of leaders in our area 10 and they still feel secure meeting by team and Zoom. So 11 12 until further notice, we will be meeting there. We are 13 not meeting in the month of December. Our vacation starts 14 from August and September, but every last Wednesday of 15 the month, unless it falls on a holiday. And we'll let 16 you know in advance. Is it okay if I give you my email? CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's okay, if you don't mind 17 sharing it on public record. 18

19 MS. MCGEE: Oh, I'm on it.

20 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay, well go right ahead.

MS. MCGEE: That way I can send you an email and all the information so you can attend our meeting. It is an unusual one. It's mlms515@sbcglobal.net. Yes, I've had it a long time.

25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: No judgment here. Well, thank



Page 63

1 you so much. Are there any other questions or comments for the precinct president? Hearing none, thank you so 2 very much. We truly appreciate your service and maybe Ms. 3 Blossom and Commissioner Carter can look in our youth 4 5 advisory panel and there might be some young person who 6 is in the Sixth Precinct who might be able to assist in getting some young people out to these community 7 relations meetings. Alright, with that, we will now move 8 9 to the report from the board Secretary and incoming Communications, Secretary Shah. 10

11 MS. SHAH: Thank you Mr. Chair. For the Secretary 12 report today, Commissioners your incoming correspondence 13 are outlining your agenda, including the updated tracking 14 of outstanding requests to DPD for data and information. 15 The City of Detroit will be observing Veterans Day on 16 Friday, November 10th, and the BOPC and OCI Offices will 17 be closed on that day. Due to the NACO Conference, a quorum of commissioners will not be present for the 18 November 16th board meeting. The board may convene the 19 meeting without a quorum, take public comments and 20 adjourn. There will be staff present to support. 21 Commissioners if you still need assistance with your per 22 diem and submitting expenses for the conference, please 23 24 see Mr. Brown. City Council had their formal session on Tuesday, November 7th and confirmed Commissioner Rory 25



Page 64

Gamble's appointment to the Board of Police Commissioners 1 effective immediately through October 17th, 2028. 2 Commissioner Gamble was onboarded at the Detroit Public 3 Safety Headquarters office, yesterday. 4 Commissioners, please reference your packets for the 5 first draft of the 2024 BOPC calendar. It has 6 incorporated a concept of community meetings being based 7 on district rather than precinct. If the board chooses to 8 go in this direction. Staff appreciates your feedback as 9 draft edits continue. In regards to staffing updates, the 10 acting attorney to the board was voted on, on November 11 12 2nd, and the board voted to adopt a letter of 13 understanding establishing Stephanie LaBelle as the 14 acting board attorney for 90 days. You have copies in 15 your packet of the signed letter. Attorney LaBelle was 16 onboarded at Detroit Public Safety Headquarters on the 17 6th of November and plans to join staff at the board table starting at the November 30th meeting. In regards 18 to open positions for investigators and analysts, on last 19 week's meeting, the board voted to offer contingent 20 appointments to five investigator candidates and one 21 22 analyst.

HR is currently negotiating salaries and conducting
background checks. Tentative start date for these
individuals will be November 27th. And the position of



Page 65

1 the executive assistant two that position is now posted on the city website for interested in qualified 2 individuals to apply. The last item in my report is 3 related to budget and OCI staffing. Chief Investigator 4 5 gave updates today on OCI inventory and staffing levels. 6 Commissioners, we want to thank you for doing your part interviews, appointment considerations, budget and 7 position amendments. You are definitely doing your part 8 to get the BOPC and OCI fully staffed to budget and 9 that's greatly appreciated. Staff continues to navigate 10 changing direction and processes with various city 11 12 departments. However, we are committed to secure the 13 staff and skillsets necessary for the board to fulfill 14 its charter mandated functions and establish and maintain 15 public trust. Chief investigator and I have been working 16 with the City of Detroit Lean Team to identify areas to gain efficiencies and increase quality in the OCI 17 processes, including submitting an RFP for a new case 18 19 management system.

20 While efficiencies will certainly be gained, it will 21 not be a 1300 cases worth of efficiencies. OCI needs more 22 investigator hands on deck and there really is no way 23 around that executive manager Drew Friez has communicated 24 to the board that BOPC is underspent against its fiscal 25 year 2023/2024 budget and is currently \$278,000



underspent and projected to be over \$500,000 underspent 1 by the end of the fiscal year. Understandably, BOPC needs 2 to first exhaust this XX budget prior to pursuing a 3 budget increase, which will still be needed. There is 4 sufficient surplus to hire six investigators for up to 5 six months to help with the backlog. Remember, the need 6 is closer to 20, which is why a budget increase is still 7 needed. HR has advised that BOPC staff refrain from 8 hiring task workers and to instead, use the surplus to 9 add actual union investigator positions to the budget and 10 hire. 11

12 And then when the surplus is exhausted to pursue 13 layoffs based on seniority. Staff is waiting for budget 14 and finance to approve leveraging the current surplus to 15 add those six union investigators. Due to the NACO 16 conference and Thanksgiving, the board will not be meeting with the quorum for two weeks. Staff recommends 17 that the board approve the addition of up to six union 18 investigators to the fiscal year 2023/2024 budget using 19 existing surplus and pending the approval of budget, 20 finance, HR, and LR. This will allow staff to move 21 22 forward with any necessary amendments during the two weeks that the board is not meeting. Mr. Chair that 23 concludes the Secretary report. 24

25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you for your report. And



1 as a response to the last item on your report, the Chair entertains a motion to amend the current budget to add up 2 to six investigator positions, leveraging the underspent 3 monies in the fiscal year 2023/2024, budget pending 4 approval from HR, LR, budget and finance. 5 COMMISSIONER CARTER: So moved. 6 COMMISSIONER PRESSLEY: And properly moved in second. 7 Is there any discussion? Hearing No discussion. All those 8 in favor please signify by saying, aye. 9 10 COMMISSIONERS: Aye. CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those opposed. No. The 11 12 Ayes have it, and that motion passes. We've already gone 13 through announcements. Is there any new business? 14 COMMISSIONER BURTON: New business, Mr. Chairman. CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Burton. 15 16 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Looking at the board is going to be returning from NACO on Thursday the 16th, I move 17 that we move our meeting to the following day for, you 18 know, for next week to the 17th, due to the fact that 19 you're not going to have anyone in attendance to have a 20 21 quorum. And so, since the charter speaks to the fact that the board shall meet weekly, I just think we would do our 22 23 due diligence by making ourselves available for our 24 constituents, if we move the 16th meeting to the 17th. 25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Do you have a time for the



Page 68

17th? Is there a time that you're recommending for the
 17th?

3 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Same time as our normal 4 meetings at 3 o'clock.

5 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: So there is a motion by 6 Commissioner Burton to move next week's meeting to Friday 7 September, excuse me, Friday, November the 17th at 3:00 8 PM. Is there a second?

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: Support.

10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: And properly moved, and

11 second, is there any discussion? Hearing no discussion,

12 all those in favor, please signal by saying, Aye.

13 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Aye.

14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those who opposed? The 15 Ayes have it. So the meeting now, of again, for all of 16 the public, and we'll make sure that that is communicated 17 is not next Thursday, November the 16th, but rather next Friday, November the 17th at 3:00 PM at the Detroit 18 Public Safety Headquarters, pending that there's no 19 scheduling conflict in that regard. With that, is there 20 any further new business? Commissioner Bernard? 21 22 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Only one item ladies and gentlemen, and I'd like to acknowledge the presence of 23 Lily Robinson, who is a mother, Derek Anderson, who is a 24 25 dad and the loss of their son, LaValle Anderson who was



1 attacked by a pit bulldog and killed. It was on all the national media. I'd just like to say on behalf of myself 2 and behalf of our colleagues, and especially Tamara who 3 is my new colleague, how distressed we all are by that 4 5 occurrence. What was most impressive about it to me was 6 the announcement concerning him. He had on a Spider-Man outfit and every little boy I know, likes Spider-Man. And 7 his nickname is Turkey, a little four year old boy, just 8 as cute as he could be in his mother's arms. But it's a 9 10 real tragedy.

It grieved my heart greatly, and Tamara as well. And 11 12 I just wanted to acknowledge your presence here this 13 evening and tell you that you have, I think mine and all 14 of our colleague's prayers. And if there's anything that 15 we could do for you please let us know. From a police 16 standpoint, and Chief Hayes is here right now. I don't believe we have recovered the dog yet that did this. We 17 had picked up, as I understand, four dogs, none of them 18 had Turkey's DNA on them and one other dog, but we don't 19 know where this animal is. They say it's a pit bull, but 20 21 in my own neighborhood, there was a coyote, which is over near six mile. So I don't know. There are animals around 22 the city. But in any event, I just wanted to convey my 23 condolences, our condolences, and I know that all of you 24 25 are with me in terms of wishing Lily Robinson, and Derek



1 Anderson, our condolences regarding Turkey.

2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Commissioner Smith,3 do you have anything to add?

4 COMMISSIONER SMITH: Thank you, Chair. Just following 5 through what Commissioner Linda, I did get a chance to go 6 over to the viewing and speak with the family and pay my 7 condolences to you, to Turkey. I was at the candlelight. 8 I'm just so sorry that this has happened. My deepest 9 condolences go out to you and the family. Thank you.

10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. There's any other 11 new business?

12 COMMISSIONER BURTON: The Chair.

13 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Burton.

COMMISSIONER BURTON: I don't know if this is the 14 15 appropriate time or not, but I'm going to give it a try. 16 In the past practices being on this board two of my 17 colleagues, which is Commissioner Bell, and also honorable Commissioner Carter, they have always advocated 18 for us to be able to have one or two meetings per school 19 per year to be held at a school. And I believe 20 Commissioner Moore probably recall that during his first 21 term on the board as well. But this is something that we 22 have always had in place. And so I looked at the 23 24 calendar, the calendar seems fine, but we should get back 25 to the tradition when we first came on as elected body to



Page 71

1 have one or two meetings per year at a school. And I believe those was at 3 o'clock meetings and that was 2 something that Commissioner Bell, and Commissioner Carter 3 has championed over the years. I'd like it if I make a 4 motion at this time that we move to have one or two 5 meetings for the upcoming calendar for 2024 to be held at 6 a school. 7 8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Burton has

9 offered a motion...

10 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Second.

11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: That the schedule for the 2024 12 BOPC meeting should include at least two sites at 13 schools. That motion has been seconded. Is there any 14 discussion?

15 COMMISSIONER BELL: Mr. Chairman.

16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Bell?

17 COMMISSIONER BELL: I was to suggest one meeting. 18 It's a whole lot of logistic trying to host a meeting in 19 the high school or middle school. A whole lot of issues 20 of concern of that as facility and student body. So one 21 meeting, would you make that the amendment?

COMMISSIONER BURTON: Sure. no problem. I'd like to amend that we have at least one meeting held at a school for the year of 2024.

25 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Second.



	11/09/2023 Page /2
1	CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Is there any objection to the
2	amendment? No objection to the amendment. Again, the
3	motion on the floor is that in the 2024 BOPC schedule,
4	that at least one of our meetings will be held at a
5	school. Is there any further discussion? Hearing none.
б	All those in favor please signify by saying, Aye.
7	COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
8	CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those opposed? No. The
9	Ayes have it.
10	CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: The motion passes. Is there
11	any further new business? Hearing none. The Chair
12	entertains a motion for adjournment.
13	COMMISSIONER CARTER: So moved.
14	CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: There's a second. It's been
15	properly moved, and second. All those in favor, please
16	signify by saying, Aye.
17	COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
18	CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those opposed, nay. The
19	Ayes have it. This meeting is adjourned. Thank you.
20	
21	(Meeting Adjourned at 8:36PM)
22	
23	
24	
25	



HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313.567.8100

		11/03/2023	rage /S
1			
2	STATE OF MICHIGAN)	
3)	
4	COUNTY OF WAYNE)	
5			
6	RECORDER ' S	CERTIFICATE AND NOTARIZATION	
7			
8	I, D	onald Handyside, Court Recorder	:, do
9	hereby certify	that on November 9, 2023 at 6:	30p.m.,
10	I did record t	he Detroit BOPC meeting, the sa	ime
11	being later re	duced to typewriting and that t	he
12	foregoing is a	true and accurate transcriptio	on of
13	said electroni	c recording taken at such time	and
14	place.		
15	I fu	rther certify that I am not rel	ated to
16	or employed by	any party of this cause or the	eir
17	respective cou	nsel.) a ² a 8 - a
18		()	
19		Wind -	
20		DONALD HANDYSIDE (CER 1464)	
21		Notary Public	
22		My Commission Expires: 5/6/20)27
23			
24			
25			



Page 73

DBOPC 11/09/2023

	12,25
\$	1221
\$278,000 65:25	13 2 ²
\$500,000 66:1	13%
	13,00
(1300
(313) 43:5,6	14 52
(586) 48:11,17,22	14%
	14.2
0	1400
0.2% 39:15	146 2
	14th
1	15 23
1 13:22 51:25	15%
1% 23:3	15.6%
1,105 29:17	15560
1,148 29:19	156 4
1,212 28:21	157 2
1,214 28:22	15858
1,323 18:13,14	16%
1,458 21:16	16500
10 42:2 61:15	16th
10% 24:12 39:8,10	68:1
10:00 42:1,11	17 5 ⁻
10th 63:16	17%
11 11:7 44:12 52:10	175 4
11% 23:2	17th
11,105 29:17	18 2 ⁴
111 19:13 20:15	18%
11450 38:16	1800
11th 41:21 49:5	18th
12 21:10,12 32:22 33:1 38:20	1932
57:25	198 2
12% 28:17	1997
	1

53 29:18 32:22 21:10 25:4 40:2 **00** 31:10,24 30:14 65:21 52:10 22:25 38:18 32:21 29:2 3:15 23:11 22:25 % 39:22 **60** 42:4 48:2 21:22 **8** 41:24 28:16 **0** 42:9 3:13 63:19 67:17,24 17 51:23 39:14 41:12 64:2 67:19,24 68:1,2,7,18 1:9 38:20 39:19 22:24 31:7 42:1 **1** 42:7,11 23:16 47:10

1st 50:15

2				
2 4:9 13:22 57:25				
20 58:16 66:7				
20,000 48:1				
20.6% 39:24				
2022 9:25 24:2,4 28:21				
2023 4:25 5:4,8 7:19 18:12 21:15 22:21,22 23:10 24:3 40:11				
2023/2024 65:25 66:19 67:4				
2024 11:8 64:6 71:6,11,24 72:3				
2028 64:2				
20th 42:10				
21st 3:20 42:16 50:1				
220 28:10				
222 29:1				
224 23:10				
22:48 51:25				
236 43:5,6				
24 26:12 34:17				
244 40:12 43:23				
25% 22:23				
260 18:18				
263 28:9				
27th 64:25				
28 39:13				
28th 3:21				
29% 39:10				
2nd 5:8 64:12				
3				

3 13:22 44:13 45:11,21 68:4



DBOPC 11/09/2023

6th 32:10 64:17

7

7 4:19 13:22 38:7 39:1 57:18 **7.4%** 39:13 **700** 42:3 **72** 34:13,18 35:1 **728** 28:14 **7615** 43:5,7 7th 32:17 42:15 63:25

8

8 13:22 44:13 **8%** 23:3 80,000 38:19 808 21:15 **824** 28:14 **873** 18:16,23 8904 3:17 8:36PM 72:21 8th 9:25

9

9% 23:14,17 **90** 17:20 18:15 64:14 918 48:17,22 **918-3061** 48:12 **924** 8:10 **95** 17:21 **96** 28:14 **9th** 4:25 39:4 52:15 Α

absence 4:5,12,22

abuse 30:6 49:22 59:3 abused 58:17 access 37:3 accidents 48:1 accurate 20:3 26:10 acknowledge 68:23 69:12 acronym 57:5 58:11 acting 6:4 19:6 64:11,14 **action** 16:9 actions 16:3,4 35:21 activate 16:14,15 17:2,4,6,17, 25 active 58:7 activities 11:22 41:5 actual 66:10 70:3 added 18:22 addition 19:17 66:18 additional 30:3 31:4 address 27:7 28:23 adjourn 63:21 adjourned 72:19,21 adjournment 72:12 adjudicated 44:2 administrative 22:25 23:1 administrators 2:14 **ado** 8:2 adopt 64:12 adopting 42:20 adult 61:10 advance 62:16 advanced 10:17 advise 55:18

71:2 **300** 40:18 54:12 **3061** 48:18,22 30th 64:18 **313** 57:5 **315** 57:3 **32** 51:25 33 51:11,15,21 52:5 **34%** 29:2 **36** 32:10 **374** 21:24 **38** 47:12 3:00 3:13 68:7,18 3rd 31:10 4

4 4:14 13:22 38:21 44:14 **43** 28:11 **450** 18:14 **48** 34:7,10,13,16,22,25 35:1 52:7

5

5 4:16 13:22 **5,344** 30:3 **5,408** 30:3 596 32:21 **5:00** 3:20,22 5th 32:8 6

6 13:22

64 30:3

6:30 2:4 3:15

2

activated 15:25 16:2,24 18:3,5 add 24:19 25:14 66:10,15 67:2



advised 46:17 66:8 advisors 12:12 advisory 9:11,22,25 10:15,19 11:19 55:22 60:6 63:5 advocate 53:11,13 54:2 advocated 25:15 26:20 70:18 Affairs 45:17,19 affected 36:20 affectionately 11:8 affinity 36:9 aftercare 40:22 afternoon 44:11 60:24 aged 18:22 agencies 12:1 agenda 2:21,24 3:7 4:25 5:1,2 49:25 63:13 aggravated 39:12 40:25 41:2 agree 26:11 53:17 ahead 13:24 15:2 38:13 49:4 50:11 57:8 58:14 62:20 ahold 59:7 aid 6:20 Akin 53:23 Alana 10:6,12 59:25 **Alexis** 10:4,12 Allan 6:3 allegations 21:18,25 22:2,5, 17,24 23:10,11,14,17 24:1 alphabetical 8:3 Alright 4:23 9:10 10:22 13:25 14:18 43:21 44:5,8 58:15 63:8 amazing 6:19 7:13 43:13,23 **Amazon** 60:5 ambulance 51:24 **Amen** 3:3,4 amend 67:2 71:23

DBOPC 11/09/2023 amended 3:7 amendment 71:21 72:2 amendments 65:8 66:22 American 5:23 amount 38:21 analyst 64:22 analysts 64:19 analyze 30:24 Anderson 68:24,25 70:1 Angelica 10:6,12 **Angie** 8:20 animal 69:20 animals 69:22 **Annie** 9:16 46:25 announcement 69:6 announcements 3:10,11 67:13 answering 18:9 **Anti** 41:6 anticipation 13:7 anymore 48:10 apologies 13:14 apologize 39:2 60:16 **APP** 60:1 apparently 45:25 appeared 26:21 **apply** 56:8 65:3 appointed 55:19 appointment 64:1 65:7 appointments 64:21 appreciated 65:10 appreciates 64:9 **appreciation** 7:5 9:4 10:13 **approval** 4:25 5:1,3,4 20:12 66:20 67:5

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

approve 5:7 66:14,18 approved 5:2,6 9:21 11:21 approximately 38:18,19 area 6:23 7:6,9 9:1 38:8 61:10 62:10 areas 17:18 22:14 29:10 36:16 38:20 62:10 65:16 armed 29:15 32:12 arms 69:9 Armstead 8:4 **Arnold** 43:12 arraigned 32:9 34:16,18 arrest 16:22 arrested 31:2 34:16 35:5 arrests 34:8 arrived 31:20 Arthur 50:9 54:10 article 26:23 27:2 ascertain 30:25 assault 31:9 32:11,12,14 41:3 assaults 39:13 40:25 assist 15:7 57:12 63:6 assistance 63:22 assistant 65:1 Associate 2:8 Association 26:21 54:11 assurance 20:9,10 21:12 assure 36:6 asterisk 34:25 attacked 69:1 attend 61:4,5 62:22 attendance 6:19 44:13 67:20 attended 7:19 attention 14:24 attorney 4:8 46:24 64:11,14,

15 audience 24:20 **audio** 6:3 auditorium 3:17 August 24:4 62:14 Augustine 53:17 aunt 47:11 auto 39:19.20.22 automatically 17:19,21 Avenue 3:17 42:7 average 24:11 award 9:4 60:7 awards 27:24 aware 26:25 59:10 aye 5:12,13 67:9,10 68:12,13 72:6,7,16,17 Ayes 5:15 67:12 68:15 72:9,19

В

back 12:12 17:23,24,25 19:24 20:8 25:4,6 30:13 33:15 45:21 55:13 56:20 70:24 background 64:24 backlog 18:16,17,23 66:6 bacterial 52:11 bad 26:23 27:25 bag 23:25 44:15 balance 20:13 balanced 26:4 Ballard 8:4 Banks 4:11 47:17 49:1,2,3,5 **Baptist** 2:6,12,18 Bar 58:3,4 Barbara 8:15 Baron 33:9

11/09/2023 barriers 14:6,7 bars 27:2,3 based 24:17 64:7 66:13 basically 61:9 basis 21:11 **basket** 42:12 **Bass** 8:4 **bat** 43:14 bear 21:22 39:5 Beatty 5:25 beautiful 61:15,25 began 31:23 begin 2:6 3:10 behalf 2:13 4:16 69:2,3 behaviors 28:18 believed 30:20 **Bell** 4:13 21:19 26:6,7 46:7 61:18 68:9 70:17 71:3,15,16, 17 Bernard 4:8,9 5:9 24:18,19 46:25 50:4 68:21,22 71:10,25 **Beta** 8:4 **big** 35:25 40:8 41:8 bio 38:14 birthday 8:9 52:9,15 **bit** 7:25 13:15.20 16:6 24:5 39:6 43:17 47:19 50:13 **Black** 44:15 **Bless** 2:21 **Blight** 41:14 Blitz 18:7 **block** 30:14 31:11,24 61:3 **blood** 30:19 Blossom 5:21 9:13 63:4 blowing 54:22

Blue 8:5

Blunt 55:9,11,12,13 60:12,15, 16

board 2:4 3:12 7:21 9:18,20 10:9,15,24 11:25 12:13,25 13:4,8,10 14:3 17:9 18:19 25:18,22 26:2,3 34:2 35:12 38:4 44:12 45:12 46:9,13,19, 21,24 54:13 55:19,23 57:13 60:21 61:16 62:1 63:9,19 64:1,8,11,12,14,17,20 65:13, 24 66:16,18,23 67:16,22 70:16,22

Bobbi 8:10

bodily 32:13

body 15:19,21,23,25 23:22 27:13 30:21 70:25 71:20

body- 15:12 17:2

body-worn 16:1,5,8,11,14,15, 25 17:5,6,10,13,17,18 23:19

bombs 54:22

Booker 2:9,11

books 54:3

BOPC 5:16,19 7:4 63:16 64:6 65:9,24 66:2,8 71:12 72:3

BOPC's 13:2

bottlenecks 20:5

bottom 3:9 15:16 19:5,22

bow 2:18

Bowman 55:10,14,15

boy 69:7,8

Boys 42:9

braking 18:3

bravery 27:25

break 47:9

breakfast 41:21,22

breaking 44:24 53:11

breakout 24:5



breath 52:1 Brian 46:14 Brilliant 9:5 bringing 27:15 40:21 broken 22:3 56:23 Brotherhood 41:17 brought 40:21 47:3 Brown 5:22 7:1,22 8:6 39:2 41:6 44:10,11 46:4 47:16 49:1 50:7 51:2,3,4,6 52:24 54:7 55:8,14 57:2 58:11 59:25 60:11,14 63:24 **budget** 65:4,7,9,25 66:3,4,7, 10,13,19,20 67:2,4,5 budgeted 21:8,9 **bull** 69:20 bulldog 69:1 bullying 41:7 Bureau 27:15 burglaries 39:15 burned 59:1 burns 59:2 Burton 3:24 4:15 7:9 25:12,13, 14 26:11 37:10,11,12 67:14, 15,16 68:3,6,13 70:12,13,14 71:8,22 business 67:13,14 68:21 70:11 72:11 **busy** 22:4 Butler 6:16 8:6 bye 52:13

С

CAC 55:10

calendar 64:6 70:24 71:6

call 2:4 10:3 11:8 24:23 27:20 30:8,15 31:24 40:22 41:15 43:3 44:13 46:16 48:11,18

11/09/2023 50:18 called 32:21 35:2 46:23 51:20 **caller** 57:2 58:11,12,15,22,25 59:13,24 **calls** 16:9,21 29:11,14,17,19, 25 30:3 camaraderie 61:23 camera 11:2 15:13,20,21 16:1, 5,8,25 17:3,5,6,10,13,25 23:19,22 cameras 15:23,25 16:11,15 17:17,19,21,23 18:2,4 52:19 Campbell 8:7 Candace 5:23 candidates 64:21 candlelight 70:7 capable 57:20 captain 32:25 33:17,18,23 38:1,24,25 43:9,10 44:6 58:1 car 15:17,18 17:24 38:20 44:24 45:3,4 48:1 51:12 52:6 card 6:25 care 14:17 45:25 48:14 52:12 carjacking 29:3 carjackings 29:1 40:1 **Carrie** 8:16 carry 11:22 carrying 32:13 cars 48:2

Carter 4:17 9:12,14,15 10:22 11:1,5,6 12:3,8,21 46:25 63:4 67:6 70:18 71:3 72:13

Carter's 6:14

case 31:4 44:2 51:17 59:8,21 62:6 65:18

cases 17:12 18:14,16,19,20, 23,25 19:1,9,11,12,13,15,17, 21 20:15,23,24 21:14,15 24:7,

8,12 26:16 47:6,7 49:8 65:21 casinos 48:20 catch 23:5,8 54:24 categories 28:7 category 23:4,9 **CB** 61:5 **CCR** 21:18 Ceasefire 40:16 **Cedric** 4:11 celebrate 25:7 cell 37:1 center 3:16 32:7 42:6 certificate 10:13,20 chair 3:11 4:2,3,4 5:7,19 6:5 9:15 10:18 11:6 12:3,9,21 13:1,14,25 25:12 27:12 33:14

34:3 35:23 37:10,17 44:11 50:4 55:8 57:2 60:11 63:11 66:23 67:1 70:4,12 72:11

chairman 8:14 9:7 22:18 26:7 33:24 46:21 67:14 71:15

CHAIRPERSON 2:3 3:4,23 4:23 5:10,14 6:7,18 7:12 8:23 9:8,10 10:21,23 11:3,15 12:5, 11,17 13:2,19,23 15:1 24:14 25:13 26:6 27:4 33:20 37:5,8, 11,24 38:13 43:8,21 44:4,16, 19 46:2,6 47:13,15 48:23,25 49:4,24 50:11,13,21 51:3,5 52:18,21 53:1 54:6,9 55:7,11 57:1,8 58:10,14,20,23 59:11, 23 60:2,10,12,15 62:4,17,20, 25 66:25 67:11,15,25 68:5,10, 14 70:2,10,13 71:8,11,16 72:1,8,10,14,18

Chambers 33:4,6 36:3 38:25

championed 71:4 chance 35:13 70:5 Chang 48:15 change 28:18 36:18 5

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313.567.8100

11/09/2023

changing 29:6 65:11 channels 34:6 chaplains 40:24 charge 22:23 35:5 charges 32:11 47:3 Charice 47:17 49:1 Charmel 50:16 51:8 charter 35:18 65:14 67:21 **check** 20:13 checks 64:24 cheekbones 8:23 **chest** 15:15 Chicago 42:7,11 **chief** 5:16,20 6:6,10,11 13:12 14:3,18 18:7 20:14 24:17,22 27:5,9,11,12,14 33:8,9,10,24, 25 34:3,12 35:9,23,24 37:13, 17,21 38:4 41:11 43:12 45:13 52:21 54:18 59:13 61:21 65:4, 15 69:16 **Chief's** 18:6 27:16 33:22 35:17 37:9 child 49:11,22 52:17 57:11 59:3 children 41:7 52:2 chooses 64:8 Christiana 47:16 Church 2:6,13,18 52:3 circulate 27:2 circumstances 34:20 citizen 3:20 14:16 15:9,22 21:16,22 52:4 citizen's 25:19,23 citizens 14:6 16:16,22 25:8,16 33:5 35:13,16 37:3 38:8,19 45:9 47:8 city 3:1 6:14 7:17 10:15 12:1 28:6,12,15 29:9 30:13 36:8,11

37:15,20,23 39:20 56:14,15, 16,17,21 63:15,24 65:2,11,16 69:23 city's 25:16,21 35:18 37:14 citywide 7:19 **Civic** 54:11 civil 14:10 59:8,18,19,21 civilian 10:17 45:18 clarify 36:23 clear 35:3 **cleared** 16:12 Clemons 8:18 **Clois** 8:7 close 12:18 24:6 **closed** 5:6,8 18:21,25 19:13, 18 20:16,24 21:14,15 22:21 23:10,16 24:1 63:17 **closely** 40:14 **closer** 66:7 **closet** 41:19 closure 20:19 23:2 39:11 closures 22:25 **Club** 42:9 **Clubs** 61:3 **CNS** 42:4 Coalition 41:14 code 53:20,21 **Cody** 8:7 42:5,11 coffee 33:4 36:4 57:24 **Coleman** 56:21 **Coleman's** 46:12 collaboration 40:24 colleague 25:15 69:4 **colleagues** 60:19 69:3 70:17 colleague's 69:14

command 22:7 33:6 36:10

6

commander 32:24 33:4,6,16, 18,22 35:14,24 36:3,4,24,25 37:4 38:1,3,6,14,24 43:11,13 44:1,6 47:2 55:1 57:25 58:3 61:20

commander's 40:4

commanders 55:3

commands 15:21

comment 6:23,24,25 7:3 24:19 27:7 39:17 44:9,17 49:23,25 58:15,24 60:18

comments 13:10 27:5,7 63:1, 20

commercial 39:19

Commission 10:25

Commission's 13:11

commissioner 3:24 4:6,8,11, 13,15,17,18,20,21 5:9 6:15 7:6,7,9,10,14 9:2,6,9,12,13, 15,16 10:22 11:1,5,6 12:3,8, 15,21 14:4 21:19 24:18,19 25:12,13,14 26:6,7,11 33:23, 24 34:7 35:8,11 36:22,23 37:5,7,10,11,12 38:5 50:4 54:15 57:4,6,9,18 61:17 63:4, 25 64:3 67:6,7,14,15,16 68:3, 6,9,13,21,22 70:2,4,5,12,13, 14,17,18,21 71:3,8,10,15,16, 17,22,25 72:13

Commissioner's 3:12 25:18, 22

commissioners 2:5 4:1 5:13 7:8 9:20,24 10:16 11:25 15:1 26:19,24 27:6,8 33:21 45:13 46:10,19,21 55:20 57:14 62:2 63:12,18,22 64:1,5 65:6 67:10 72:7,17

committed 47:10 65:12

committee 3:18,19,21 41:7 46:9 50:1

communicated 65:23 68:16



communication 44:9 **Communications** 63:10 communities 58:8 community 3:14 5:18 6:16 7:13 8:12,25 10:18 11:24 13:12 25:10,24 26:8 27:14 29:22 30:11,23 32:16,19 36:2, 20 37:1 40:6,8 41:9,18 42:6, 12,14 53:5 55:22 56:10 58:16 60:22 61:3,7,11 63:7 64:7 compared 29:20 compensate 60:20 complain 45:5 complained 44:22 complaining 44:23 complaint 14:9 22:1 23:6,7 25:16,19,23 42:25 43:3 51:22 complaints 3:20 15:6 21:16, 23 22:1 23:21 24:21 42:24 complete 18:21 **completed** 17:1 19:15 21:3 completes 20:6 concealed 32:13 concept 64:7 **concern** 71:20 concerned 26:9 concerns 2:25 24:13 33:5 conclude 33:16 concludes 66:24 conclusion 31:5 56:4 **condolences** 50:25 53:2 69:24 70:1,7,9 conducted 25:1 conducting 64:23 conducts 47:7 conference 63:17,23 66:16 confidence 15:9

11/09/2023 confirmed 63:25 confiscated 40:11 confiscating 43:23 conflict 29:5 41:8 68:20 congratulating 55:5 congratulations 8:21 12:1,17 congregation 2:14 connect 52:22 connectivity 36:21 considerations 65:7 **consist** 29:14 consistent 24:10 **console** 53:4,6 Constantine 3:16 constantly 45:5 constituents 67:24 consult 20:2 contact 16:20 31:7 50:24 **contacts** 16:16,20 **context** 34:15 contingent 64:20 continually 41:3 continue 2:22 12:25 28:17,20, 25 29:3,7,10 30:7 36:21 37:19 45:15 58:2 64:10 continues 65:10 contribution 6:22 12:2 contributions 10:16 control 50:3 **convene** 63:19 Conversely 53:15 **convey** 69:23 cooperation 11:19 **cop** 57:24 **copies** 64:14

copy 59:4 **Cormac** 47:4 **corner** 38:16 corners 42:17 corporation 61:12 corrections 20:8 40:15 correctly 45:19 46:1 correspondence 63:12 **council** 6:14 41:9 55:22 63:24 Councilman 42:7 **Counsel** 60:23 **Counts** 14:14 County 31:3 32:9 33:11 40:16 couple 14:19 32:16 36:17 court 6:1 32:10 33:13 47:5 courtrooms 47:6 **courts** 59:5 cousin 50:12,15,20 51:9 52:13 **cover** 11:8 46:12 **covered** 47:12 **coyote** 69:21 **CPL** 31:18 craft 21:6 **crazy** 45:22 create 9:17,21 50:2 credit 7:13 crime 27:15 29:3.24 30:20 31:7 39:25 40:15 41:4 51:16 56:13,14,15 59:16 crimes 28:19 47:10 criminal 52:7,8 59:19 Cromwell 19:6 crossed 59:21 cruiser 17:19,23 Crystal 8:8



culture 49:9,16 current 66:14 67:2 curve 21:4 custody 31:7 32:7 35:2 39:12 cute 69:9

D

dad 68:25 daddy 52:11,13,14 daily 15:22 17:8,14 **damage** 45:3 dangerous 32:14 Dankert 8:7 data 63:14 date 21:15,17 28:13 33:3 62:6 64:24 daughter 51:10,23,25 52:2,3, 16 daughter's 51:17,19 52:9 **Davis** 6:14,15 57:4,5,6,9 day 2:19 18:15 26:14 38:23 39:5,13 42:12 52:1,10 53:7 63:15,17 67:18 day-to- 38:22 days 51:11,15,21 52:6,10 64:14 DC 6:8 55:10,14 59:11 deactivate 16:11 deactivated 16:5 deactivates 16:8 deal 18:11 Dealing 35:9 deals 20:18 22:4,17,19 24:1 dealt 49:10 death 31:1 deceased 30:18

DBOPC 11/09/2023 decedent's 31:1 **December** 3:15 12:24 24:4 42:15,17 62:13 decision 28:18 29:7 decisions 11:21 29:5 36:12 **deck** 65:22 declared 30:17 decrease 28:16,17 29:2 deepest 70:8 definition 18:17 degrades 53:25 degree 59:2 deleted 51:15 delivering 32:19 delivery 32:18 **Delta** 8:13 demeanor 21:21 department 15:6,10 22:12,13 27:18 35:20 36:11 37:14 40:15 44:23,25 45:9 46:17,20 47:20 48:12 51:16 department's 37:15 departments 12:1 65:12 **Deputy** 6:11 18:7 27:11,12,14 34:3,12 35:9,11,23 37:17 41:11 43:12 52:21 54:18 59:13 Derek 68:24 69:25 deserve 29:23 deserved 57:22 desire 6:23 destroyed 44:1,3 detail 17:8,14 detective 51:17 52:2 detectives 31:3.23 39:11 40:23 51:13

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

detention 32:7 determine 53:19 determined 16:17 determines 17:5 Detroit 2:4 3:2,13,17 9:20 10:15,24 11:10 15:6,10 17:20 29:9 30:13 32:2 37:16 39:21 40:18,20 44:21,25 47:20 48:12,21 49:6 54:11,12 58:8 63:15 64:3,16 65:16 68:18 **Detroiters** 9:19 detroitredlights@gmail.com 48:11 detroitredlights@gmail.com. 47:25 48:1.7.17.21 **device** 45:4 dictates 34:15 die 51:23 died 52:10,15 diem 63:23 difference 9:1 53:18 diffuse 45:22,24 diligence 11:20 67:23 diligently 30:23 dinner 42:12 direction 33:19 64:9 65:11 directive 15:24 16:1 director 6:1 46:10 disabled 27:18 disciplinary 16:9 discovered 30:19 32:1 discovery 30:21 discussed 33:13 discussion 40:8 67:8 68:11 71:14 72:5 Diseco 33:18 39:2 43:10

disobey 53:16 disorderly 47:7 displayed 15:15 distressed 69:4 district 3:2 4:9,14,16,19 32:10 38:7 39:1 57:18 64:8 districts 11:9 diverse 11:10 **DNA** 69:19 document 17:7 34:3 59:17 documented 17:13,15 **dog** 69:17,19 dogs 52:5 69:18 **Dolly** 58:19 domestic 33:11,14 49:8,9,11, 16,17,19,22 **Don** 6:1 **Donna** 8:8 door 32:20 doorbells 52:5 Doordash 47:22 doors 17:23 18:1 dotted 59:20 **DPD** 5:25 11:9 15:20 49:6,10, 18 50:3 63:14 draft 64:6.10 drag 48:4 Drew 65:23 drive 28:18,20 driver 31:13 32:5 34:21 driving 28:24 drop 33:1 drug 30:1 due 17:6 27:19 63:17 66:15 67:19,23

11/09/2023 **DUI** 49:6 **Duly** 9:8 duplicate 23:9 duplicates 23:3,4 **Dural** 42:7 **Durhal** 6:15 duties 16:19 duty 15:23 27:20 **DWIN** 30:4 Dwyer 31:11,14,25 Ε early 23:19 easier 8:1 easing 46:8 easy 7:23 **Ebony** 8:18 echo 35:10 Edge 50:9 54:7,8,10 edits 64:10 effective 64:2 effectively 15:4 efficiencies 65:17,20,21 efforts 24:6 28:23 **Eighth** 41:17 elected 2:22 5:17 6:12 56:3 57:17 70:25 elementary 41:8 elevated 43:12 Eleventh 47:3 Elgin 6:5 Elizabeth 8:19 email 47:22,24 48:6,19,20 62:16,21 embrace 37:19

emergency 18:1 30:17 32:6 **en** 31:11 encompasses 38:20 encounter 26:18 encounters 16:22 41:10 encouragement 28:3 encourages 14:5 encouraging 29:4 end 23:5 66:2 energy 37:2 enforcement 10:17 15:8 16:19 33:12 40:7 54:4 engaged 8:25 engagements 40:9 ensure 9:18 17:1 entertain 5:7 entertains 67:2 72:12 enthusiasm 55:21 entire 2:14 30:12 36:11 equipped 15:21 Eric 55:9 error 21:23 escaped 31:19 establish 65:14 establishing 64:13 eternal 53:24 evening 2:3,11 7:15 27:12,16 38:4 44:18,19 52:25 53:1 54:8,9 57:6 69:13 event 16:25 42:1 59:14 69:23 events 30:10 41:20,25 42:10, 22 Everett 2:13 everyone's 6:19 evidenced 36:3



exact 23:6,7 29:19 examination 30:21 excellent 6:18 14:14 26:8,17 43:24 44:4,7 61:23 62:1,2 exception 15:24 34:25 exceptions 34:19 excited 13:3 42:16 excuse 4:9 37:17 68:7 **excused** 4:4,12,22 execution 16:21 executive 2:8 65:1,23 exhaust 66:3 exhausted 66:12 existing 66:20 exited 31:16 Exonerated 23:2 exonerates 23:21 **expect** 42:9 expectation 13:7 expected 21:7 expenses 63:23 expired 35:3 explain 34:9 Explorers 41:14 extra 8:24 25:25 eye 4:10 eyes 30:12

F

face 11:1,2 59:2 Facebook 51:13,15 faces 61:17 facial 10:10 34:1 facilitate 14:21

DBOPC 11/09/2023 facility 71:20 facing 56:19 fact 13:3 49:21 53:12 55:24 58:2 61:21 67:19,21 failed 17:6 fails 17:4 failure 17:2 fair 26:3 fairly 15:4 24:10 falls 62:15 families 28:11 42:20 family 7:14 8:11,15 24:25 50:24 51:1 53:3 60:25 70:6,9 Farmington 33:10 fast 9:23 fatal 10:11 30:11 father 2:19 58:17.18 59:1 favor 5:11 67:9 68:12 72:6,15 favorably 29:8 favorite 57:19 **FBI** 30:24 fear 45:23 feedback 64:9 feel 2:16 24:16 43:2 56:16,17, 18 62:11 fellow 11:21 53:8 felonious 31:9 felony 32:14 femicide 49:21 Fenelon 31:14 Ferguson 46:15 field 15:13 54:22 fight 29:3 51:19 figure 7:23 file 14:9 18:13 25:4 45:1 59:5

fill 6:25 35:25 55:19 final 20:12 finally 17:2 finance 66:14,21 67:5 find 15:2 52:5,7,14,19 findings 19:25 22:17 fine 20:11 49:14 70:24 finished 49:23 **firearm** 31:18 firearms 32:14 43:25 44:1,3 fired 31:17,18 fiscal 65:24 66:2,19 67:4 fit 37:23 Fitzpatrick 47:4 flagged 31:12 floor 72:3 focus 25:9 28:25 focusing 41:1 folks 7:17 42:13 follow 11:21 17:11 50:24 56:12,22,24 59:15 foot 31:19 footage 15:20 17:3,10,13 23:19,22 force 10:11 32:15 54:22 Ford 44:15 46:4,5 47:16,18,21 48:24 foremost 49:13 53:6 forensically 30:24 form 25:20,23 formal 63:24 formally 36:2 forms 24:24 25:16 forward 3:7 12:19 13:6 14:25 22:20 36:7 37:25 41:19 66:22



Foster 8:7 50:8 51:2 52:24,25 53:2 fought 25:15 52:14 found 55:17 Franklin 6:11 27:14 frankly 30:12 36:15 59:15 Fraternity 8:14 Fred 6:14 Fredia 6:16 free 43:2 Friday 58:5,6 63:16 68:6,7,18 **Friends** 54:12 Friez 65:23 front 12:6 17:25 19:23 23:5 fulfill 11:18 65:13 full 43:14 fully 13:4,9 21:1 65:9 function 26:19 functions 65:14 future 12:19

G

gain 65:17 gained 65:20 Gamble 4:21 13:5 64:3 Gamble's 64:1 gathering 31:4 gave 33:1 65:5 gentleman 7:1 gentlemen 68:23 **girl** 51:9 give 6:25 7:19 9:4 10:19 18:17 38:14 43:4,6 48:18 54:16,24

62:16 70:15

giveaway 42:8

11/09/2023 giving 37:1 42:3 glad 61:19 glasses 4:10 glory 3:1 Gmail 48:16,21 goal 15:7 goals 11:22 God 53:21 61:7 good 2:3,11 7:15 13:23 22:9, 11 25:24 26:1,24 27:12 38:4 39:9 40:13 43:18 44:11,18,19 52:25 53:1 54:3,8,9 57:6 60:24 Goodfellas 42:15,18 Grand 51:12 graphic 23:13 grateful 2:5 6:18 10:23 23:24 great 2:7 11:3,4 12:13 13:7 21:5 23:20 32:12 36:13 38:9 39:4,7,17,23 43:19,20 54:14, 17 55:3 58:14 greatly 21:8 65:10 69:11 Greer 47:17 49:1 50:7,10,12, 15 51:2,4,5 52:13 greet 36:6 grieved 69:11 ground 30:16 43:14 group 9:17 12:4,5 **Grubhub** 47:23 guess 7:24 46:14 gun 28:19 32:18,20,23 33:2 41:11,12,13

guns 40:11,12 43:23

guys' 43:20

н

habitual 32:15

hall 54:24 hand 7:20 11:16 54:17 handgun 31:15 handle 14:5 49:7 57:11 hands 23:6 43:18 65:22 Handyside 6:1 happen 34:18 36:6 happened 30:14 70:8 happening 35:21 happy 43:19 53:7,9 hard 9:23 13:20 18:3,4 28:5 harm 32:13 harmony 53:22 Harris 8:8 Hart 8:8 Hausch 8:8 Hayes 5:23 6:8,11 27:11,12,14 33:25 34:3,12 35:23 37:17 52:21 54:18 59:11,13 69:16 head 31:16,22 32:5 Headquarters 3:14 64:4,16 68:19 heads 2:18 health 29:11,13,22,24 30:6 healthcare 33:13 42:4 hear 13:21 25:24 26:17 heard 9:19 55:16 56:9,20,22, 23,24 57:7 hearing 5:2,5 13:11 14:8 27:8 34:18 37:25 44:5 63:2 67:8 68:11 72:5,11 heart 57:10 69:11 Heather 8:9

held 5:6 70:20 71:6,23 72:4

helping 7:22

helps 50:2



Hernandez 4:20 14:4 47:1 heroism 27:23 Hey 46:7,14 55:18 60:4 high 38:21 48:3 71:19 highlight 40:1 Hills 33:10 hire 66:5,11 hiring 66:9 historic 10:2 hit 43:13 50:16 51:11 holder 31:18 holding 34:10 holiday 42:21 53:9 62:15 holidays 41:19 **Holly** 4:4 Holt 9:17 46:25 home 2:16 4:19 27:19 31:14 homework 37:21 homicide 28:11,12,16 34:9 homicides 28:9,10,24 56:13 honest 47:21 honor 7:24 9:16 38:9 honorable 27:13 44:12 70:18 honored 27:24 honoring 54:15 hope 6:20 29:7 57:11 hospital 32:3 34:23 46:11 51:24 52:11 host 71:18 hosting 3:16 hour 17:21 34:8,10,13,25 hours 26:12 34:16,17,22 52:7 house 36:5 housing 46:10

11/09/2023 HR 5:25 64:23 66:8,21 67:5 human 53:23,25 54:1 hundred 48:8 hurdle 40:3 L l's 59:20 identify 7:2 65:16 ignorance 37:18 **III** 58:19 **III's** 6:15 illegal 45:4,15 53:14 immediately 64:2 impact 9:19 13:12 impacted 28:12 impaired 14:8 implemented 40:3 importance 17:10 important 19:18 25:6 56:9 59:8 impressive 69:5 improve 21:7 49:19 improving 15:8 inaugural 10:14 incapacitated 34:24 incident 34:21 50:25 include 40:23 71:12 included 38:23 including 63:13 65:18 inclusive 23:3 27:10 incoming 63:9,12 inconvenience 60:17 incorporated 8:5,13,14 64:7 increase 13:20 30:8 65:17 66:4,7

NAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

DBOPC

indication 12:19 59:17 individual 30:15 32:4 61:12 individuals 50:23 57:20 64:25 65:3 infection 4:10 52:12 inform 59:12 information 22:11 30:25 31:4, 6 34:4 52:23 61:6 62:22 63:14 informative 62:1 informed 32:18 initiating 16:2,3 initiative 37:20 40:4 injured 27:17 injuries 27:19 input 26:4 inside 17:24 30:19 instance 34:19 instilling 15:9 instructed 16:10 integrity 11:19 15:9 17:1 intensive 19:21 intent 32:11,12 interactions 15:22 interested 65:2 Internal 45:17,19 interpreter 14:12 **Interpreters** 5:24 interviews 65:7 introduce 36:2 38:24 introduction 4:1 5:16 inventory 65:5 invest 56:16 investigate 15:5 18:20 25:3 46:24 50:17 51:16 investigated 51:11

DBOPC 11/09/2023

investigating 17:11 2 investigation 10:11 15:12 19:15,23 20:6,8,12 23:2 56:12 59:20 investigation's 31:5 investigations 14:21 18:22 19:2 20:3 22:20 investigative 20:11 investigator 5:20 6:5 13:12 14:3,13,14,18 19:6,7 20:5,14 24:17,22 27:5 64:21 65:4,15, 22 66:10 67:3 investigators 14:13 19:1,10, 14,24 21:2,9,11,14 23:10,16 25:3 30:23 64:19 66:5,15,19 invite 33:16,22 invocation 2:7,10 3:6 involved 38:22 41:4 involvement 16:23 40:7 issue 24:25 25:8 28:23 34:24 44:20 45:2 issues 10:8 40:9 42:14 61:20 71:19 item 65:3 67:1 68:22 Ivey 8:9 J

James 6:11 44:15 46:4 47:21 January 20:21 24:2 Jasmine 5:22 Jefferson 8:10 Jenning 2:13 Jerome 5:20 Jesus 4:20 47:1 Jesus' 3:2 Jim 4:4 job 11:3,4 14:14 21:5 23:23 26:12,17 36:13,15 39:11

45:19 48:13 49:14 54:14 62:1, Johnson 8:10 10:4 59:3 Johnson-wingo 8:11 join 64:17 joined 9:13 joining 5:20,23 joke 43:6 Joliet 30:14 Jonya 5:21 7:21 **Joy** 41:24 42:4 judgment 62:25 July 24:4 jumps 18:18 **June** 48:16 justice 50:20 justified 16:8

κ

Kathy 8:15 Katrina 6:1 Kelar 8:16 Kendall 8:10 Keneisha 56:21 Kenisha 46:12 Kenyetta 8:6 Kiara 10:4 kid 54:20 killed 48:2 69:1 killers 52:15 Kimberly 8:18 kind 34:14 55:17 King 53:10 knowingly 17:4

L Labelle 64:13,15 laceration 31:22 ladies 54:16 68:22 **Ladon** 6:14 lady 53:3 57:10 language 5:24 14:6 Lansing 48:9 larcenies 39:16 large 2:15 31:22 Lashawn 8:5 late 6:9 laugh 43:5 Lavalle 68:25 law 10:17 15:8 16:18 33:12 34:15 46:17,20 52:3 53:17,18, 19,20,21,22,23,24,25 54:4 laws 47:9 53:11,13,14,15,16 54:2,3 lawyer 46:20 layoffs 66:13 leader 2:8 30:23 leaders 5:18 62:10 leadership 33:17 44:7 leading 30:19 leads 21:20 Lean 65:16 learning 21:4,6 leave 52:12 53:9 led 30:21 31:1 Lee 7:22 39:1,2 61:24 left 16:12 31:20 35:7,24 51:14 Legacy 40:16 legal 44:2

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313.567.8100

legislators 54:2 lens 32:16 letter 45:12 64:12,15 letters 48:8 levels 65:5 leverage 30:7 leveraging 29:21 66:14 67:3 Liberty 4:6 45:1 **license** 10:10 licked 43:16 lies 53:12 lieutenant 26:21,25 life 40:10 45:24 61:10 lights 18:1 48:4,14 likes 69:7 Lily 68:24 69:25 Linda 4:8,9 8:4 46:25 70:5 Linton 58:19 Lisa 4:17 46:24 listed 22:8 listening 47:9 54:5 62:7 live 50:22 61:16 **lived** 61:9 local 33:12 located 38:15 41:23 42:4 located@detroitmi.gov 25:17 location 30:18 31:11,20 42:5 **lock** 32:18 **locks** 32:20,23 33:3 41:11,12, 13 log 17:8 logistic 71:18 long 27:21 61:8,18 62:24 longer 43:17 61:25

11/09/2023 looked 52:7 70:23 Lord 2:20,23,24 Lorraine 8:8 loss 50:21 68:25 **lost** 57:11 60:20 62:10 lot 17:9 22:1 26:4 35:10,12 45:22 54:16 55:3 57:19 61:17 62:10 71:18,19 love 36:25 60:25 61:11 lovely 51:24 LR 66:21 67:5 Lucas 6:2 Lucretia 50:7 51:7 Luther 53:10 lying 30:15 Lynn 8:8

Μ

made 7:25 17:8 36:1,12 38:8 50:19 51:22 55:3

main 54:25

maintain 65:14

make 6:22,24 7:3 13:16 14:5 15:5 17:12 20:2 26:16 27:7 29:5,7,8 37:20 39:17 43:2 45:6 52:22 55:4 58:8 59:9,20 68:16 71:4,21

making 3:24 9:1 28:19 58:15, 23 60:17 67:23

malfunction 17:7

management 65:19

manager 65:23

mandated 15:23 65:14

manmade 53:20

manner 11:24 12:6

Marie 6:13

14 Mark 26:20 52:13 Marsh 8:12 Martha's 41:24 Martin 53:10 Mary 8:6,11,12 60:23 **math** 3:6 Matney 8:15 matriculate 49:12 matter 56:9 matters 26:4 Mayor's 14:10 Mcbride 8:15 Mcfarland 58:3,4 Mcgee 8:12 60:23,24 62:8,19, 21 Mckay 47:2 Mcknuckle 8:16 **MDOC** 40:15 meaning 35:2 means 26:10,18 38:24 media 32:19 45:10 69:2 medical 30:17 34:23 35:4 medics 31:21 meet 3:19,21 32:24 36:1,5 58:4,6 67:22 meeting 2:5,7,16,21,25 3:12, 14 6:21,22 7:16,19 12:24 13:6 27:23 35:12 58:3,5 60:19 61:4 62:1,6,8,9,11,12,13,22 63:19, 20 64:18,20 66:17,23 67:18, 24 68:6,15 71:12,17,18,21,23 72:19,21 meetings 3:18 9:4 22:18 37:2 61:6 63:8 64:7 68:4 70:19 71:1,2,6 72:4

meets 12:9,22 50:1

Melinder 18:9



313.567.8100

member 6:14 10:14 13:5 16:7 17:4,5,7 24:25 27:17 55:10,14 members 10:2 11:7,11,14,16, 21,24 15:21 16:10,14,15 46:13 56:10 **men** 4:16 mend 28:2 mental 29:11,13,14,15,22,24 30:6 mentioned 27:23 34:8 37:19 mess 45:3 met 9:25 33:5 51:12,18 52:1 59:13 MGM 44:22 45:1 mic 47:19 50:14 Michael 33:4,18 38:25 39:2 Michigan 34:15 46:16 middle 24:9 71:19 mile 25:25 69:22 mileage 38:17 miles 17:21 38:18 mind 26:11,15 29:6 38:10,12 43:4 47:18 62:17 mindful 29:24 mine 69:13 mingle 42:14 Minister 55:9,11,12,13 60:12, 15 minute 16:4 61:13 minutes 5:3,5,7 6:9 44:17 55:24 61:15 misconduct 25:8 **Miser** 14:13 missed 12:23 mission 15:3 missions 11:22

DBOPC 11/09/2023 mlms515@sbcglobal.net. 62:23 mobile 54:20,21,22 **mom** 50:18 Monday 42:10 monies 67:4 Montgomery 50:8,16 51:6,7,8 52:19 month 12:9,22 19:14 20:15,16 21:11,22 58:4,5 62:9,13,15 months 21:3 45:12 66:6 **Moore** 4:18 7:7,10,14 9:2,6,9 33:23,24 34:7 35:8 36:23 37:7 46:22 54:15 70:21 moral 53:14,16,21,22 morning 51:25 mother 50:17 51:8 68:24 mother's 69:9 motion 5:7 67:2,12 68:5 71:5, 9,13 72:3,10,12 motor 39:18 56:21 mounted 15:17 move 3:7 4:24 5:2,15 7:4 13:12 14:24 27:9 44:8 56:17 60:21 63:8 66:21 67:17,18,24 68:6 71:5 moved 5:9,10 47:5 54:23 67:6, 7 68:10 72:13,15 movement 35:10,12 36:1 movements 35:16 36:20 moving 22:20 61:11 multiple 22:2 30:22 murder 32:11,13 39:8 46:12 50:17 51:10 murdered 50:12,15 51:9 52:16 Murphy 6:5 19:7

Ν NACO 63:17 66:15 67:17 names 8:20 11:13 nation 10:10 national 69:2 natural 53:24 navigate 65:10 nay 72:18 necessarily 25:19 necessitate 16:23 needed 14:8 66:4,8 negative 22:15 26:18 negatively 28:12 negotiating 64:23 neighborhood 43:24 58:1 newest 46:13 news 43:23 Newsom 8:16 33:18 Newsome 55:1

Newson 35:24 36:24,25 38:3, 5,14 43:13 44:1 newspapers 42:18 nickname 69:8 Nicole 8:19 night 59:14 nights 60:5 Nikita 45:14 Ninth 27:20 non-fatal 28:13,15,16,24 39:10 40:18 nonetheless 24:17 nonfatal 31:9 nonviolent 29:14

69:21



11/09/2023 **OCI** 6:4 15:7 18:14 19:4 21:3,

14 23:9 44:23 45:13 63:16 65:4,5,9,17,21

October 18:12 19:14 20:15,21 21:19,22,23,24 23:13,14,17 24:2 50:15 51:9 52:15 64:2

offender 41:4

normal 68:3

note 9:13

noted 9:8

notice 62:12

notify 35:16

18

NPO 39:3

61:24

NTP 57:5

59:24

November 3:13,18,20,21 4:25

5:3,8 9:25 24:4 31:10 32:8,10,

19,25 64:11,17,18,25 68:7,17,

17 41:21 42:1,10 50:1 63:16,

NPOS 26:13 32:17 33:6 41:9

NTP313 58:11,12,15,22,25

number 18:18,22,23 20:22,24

numbers 14:22 18:6,11 20:19

33:1 34:12 41:2 51:14 57:3

21:7,21 23:16 28:6,15 29:8,12

0

21:10 23:21 24:8 28:18.20

33:1,2 37:1 40:11 43:4,6

48:17,22 55:16

Oak 33:10

Obama 47:21

obeying 53:11,14

objectively 15:4

observing 63:15

obtained 30:25

occasion 2:20

occurrence 69:5

occurred 30:21 31:10

obligations 56:1,2

objection 5:1,4,5 72:1,2

obey 53:15

15:4 18:6 20:14,24 24:20,22 25:2 34:6 40:16 55:22 56:2,4, 24 64:4

officer 8:5,9,10,16,19 13:3 17:15 25:1,20,25 27:19 28:4 36:10 42:25 47:3,4 54:4 58:1, 18 59:2

officers 7:4 15:13 23:21,23 24:21 25:7 26:9,12,13 27:1,17 30:19 31:11,20 43:20 44:21,

Offices 63:16

onboarded 64:3,16

online 24:23

opinion 11:20

opportunity 6:22 25:21 27:6 36:14,16 42:13 50:2

oppose 5:14 opposed 67:11 68:14 72:8,18 oral 44:8,9 order 2:5 8:3 17:1 25:9 40:14 organization 55:24 organizations 61:3 organized 40:14 originally 32:2 other's 61:4,5 outfit 69:7 outlining 63:13 outstanding 10:16 14:2 26:12 39:11 57:20 63:14 overdose 29:25 30:1.2 oversight 10:17 Overton 8:17 owed 59:16

Ρ

pace 10:6 20:22

packet 64:15

packets 64:5

pages 51:15

panel 9:11,22,25 10:1,15,19 11:7,19,23 13:1 60:7 63:5

panel's 11:22

par 28:23

paragraph 48:6

Park 33:10 54:12,23

parked 44:22

parking 44:22

part 18:10 24:11 39:24 40:4 54:12 65:6,8

participate 42:22

participated 41:14,18

offenders 41:1

offense 41:1

offer 64:20

offered 71:9

offering 42:18 49:18

office 6:14,15 14:2,10,12,18

officer's 13:11 15:15 17:14

24 45:1,18 61:24

official 16:18

officials 2:22 5:17 6:12

Omegas 8:14

on-duty 27:19

open 18:1,14 36:5 64:19

opens 17:23

operation 38:23

operations 40:14 50:3



participating 42:3 partners 29:22 partnership 33:8,9 37:14,16 40:17 partnerships 30:4 40:13 passed 7:17 41:11 passes 67:12 72:10 past 70:16 pastor 2:8,13 Patillo 6:1 Patricia 8:6 Patrol 61:5 patrolling 26:14 Patton 51:12 Paula 8:19 pause 10:19 pay 52:4 70:6 **Peggy** 8:7 Penal 35:11 pending 66:20 67:4 68:19 **people** 9:3 27:25 29:4 35:19, 20 45:7,15,21,22 48:2,8,10,15 50:18 52:20 55:16,17,18,20, 25 56:16,17 61:23 63:7 percent 39:16 percentage 39:24,25 performance 16:18 performances 15:22 **Perielle** 10:5,12 period 18:15 39:13 person 13:15 14:11 28:4 31:7 32:4 34:16,22 45:14 46:9 55:22 57:4 63:5 personal 58:21 personality 53:25 54:1 personally 61:10,20

11/09/2023 personnel 15:7 30:17 pertinent 16:17 **Phi** 8:4,5 phone 37:1 46:22 48:17,22 **photo** 12:4,5 photograph 12:6 **pick** 46:22 picked 7:25 31:13 69:18 **picture** 12:14,16 15:14,16,18 19:4 **piece** 34:14 59:18 **pit** 69:1,20 place 2:16 30:14 35:17 41:5,6, 25 43:19 61:16 70:23 plan 26:3 59:4,7,8 plans 64:17 plates 10:10 platform 7:3 pleased 57:14,21 **pledge** 11:12,18,20,23 12:24 plenty 32:23 **Plymouth** 38:16 **PM** 3:13,15,20,22 68:8,18 podium 10:4,7 12:9 point 19:3,18 20:4 31:17 35:4 points 26:23,24 **police** 2:5 3:12 5:16 8:5,9,10, 16,19 9:16,20,24 10:11,16,18, 24 11:25 13:10 15:6,10 16:3, 23 17:19 24:21 25:1,7,8,18,22 27:9 35:19 41:10 44:21,23,25 45:2,6,9,13,18 46:9,16,19,21 47:11,20 48:12 49:13 51:16, 19 52:14 53:4 55:20 56:25 57:13,17 58:1,18 60:22 61:17 62:1 64:1 69:15

policies 10:8

17 policy 3:19 15:20 17:11 20:2 50:1,2,3 **poor** 56:10 portions 33:15 position 26:20 64:25 65:1,8 positioned 13:5 positions 64:19 66:10 67:3 positive 11:23 41:5,9 61:8 post 56:8 posted 65:1 potential 33:21 powerful 3:5 practical 16:2 practices 70:16 pray 2:20 24:15 prayer 2:19 prayers 28:3 69:14 precinct 3:15 6:17 7:14 8:12 9:6,9 22:5 24:24 27:10.21 32:17,24 33:3,5,7,17 35:9,13, 15,17,25 36:5,7,24 37:3 38:1, 6,11,15,18 39:1,8,23 40:2,4,5, 22 41:13,17 42:19 43:1,22 45:9 47:3 49:5 50:22 51:22 55:6 57:18,23 60:22,25 61:22 63:2,6 64:8 precincts 11:9 22:6,8,10 57:19 prepared 40:6 prerogative 35:18 37:22 presence 68:23 69:12 present 4:7,13,15,18 5:21,25

present 4:7,13,15,18 5:21,25 6:4 10:7,13 33:25 63:18,21

presentation 7:23 13:17 15:2 18:10 23:19 27:11 60:21

presented 23:1 24:18 60:8

president 6:16 8:12 26:21 54:10,11 63:2

N RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313.567.8100 Presley 46:14 **Pressley** 2:3 3:4,23 4:3,23 5:10,14 6:7,18 7:12 8:23 9:8, 10 10:21,23 11:3,15 12:5,11, 17 13:2,19,23 15:1 24:14 25:13 26:6 27:4 33:20 37:5,8, 11,24 38:13 43:8,21 44:4,16, 19 46:2,6 47:13,15 48:23,25 49:4,24 50:11,13,21 51:3,5 52:18,21 53:1 54:6,9 55:7,11 57:1,8 58:10,14,20,23 59:11, 23 60:2,10,12,15 62:4,17,20, 25 66:25 67:7,11,15,25 68:5, 10,14 70:2,10,13 71:8,11,16 72:1,8,10,14,18 pretty 20:20 23:7 39:9 40:12 prevent 35:21 prevented 60:17 primarily 27:1 41:1 **prime** 14:7 prior 16:2 66:3 proactive 40:9 proactively 35:16 problem 39:20 49:6,7 56:19 61:14 71:22 problems 56:15 procedure 21:20 process 23:2 44:3 processes 65:11,18 processing 32:7 produce 20:25 produced 31:18 productivity 6:21 13:8 14:23 professionals 33:13 program 11:4 32:18,22 37:18, 23 41:15,16,17 progress 28:8 29:16 project 38:10 projected 66:1

DBOPC 11/09/2023 prominent 30:22 promoted 47:4 properly 5:10 15:15 67:7 68:10 72:15 Prosecutor's 40:16 prosecutors 31:3 32:9 protect 25:9 49:20 protection 3:1 proud 14:13,17 44:8 47:19 provide 2:9 3:25 40:24 provided 9:12 16:1 **Providence** 2:6,12,18 providing 6:2,3 **public** 2:23 3:13 6:23,24,25 7:3 27:7 34:9 44:9,17 58:23 60:18 62:18 63:20 64:3,16 65:15 68:16,19 pulled 31:15 pulling 11:18 purposefully 16:7 pursue 66:12 pursuing 66:3 put 7:22 18:10 19:2 28:24 34:14 51:13 52:6 53:22 59:5 61:13 putting 11:3,4 45:4 Q qualified 65:2 quality 15:8 20:9,10 21:12 40:10 65:17 Quantez 4:3 46:14 question 15:19 34:7 35:8,9

37:12,13 43:24 62:5

questions 13:10 18:9 24:13, 17 27:5,8 33:15,21 37:8,24 43:22 44:5 62:5 63:1 quick 12:4 35:8 quicker 12:16 quickly 24:16 Quinn 6:3 quorum 3:7,25 4:24 63:18,20 66:17 67:21 quote 53:9

R

racing 48:4 raise 11:16 **raised** 47:12 Rankins 8:17 rate 39:11 48:3 rates 49:21,22 reach 18:15 **reaches** 17:20 read 46:8 54:21 readers 10:11 reading 41:7 reads 20:7 ready 8:3 14:5 52:22 real 11:17 12:4 69:10 reality 28:1 reaping 52:17 reason 8:24 17:12 54:25 56:15 Rebecca 47:2 recall 70:21 receipts 20:18 receive 3:8 15:5 21:22 received 21:16,18 22:5 30:15 receives 24:20 receiving 20:23 32:3 recent 13:5 27:24

18

 ENAISSANCE
 hansonreporting.com

 COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO
 313.567.8100

recognition 9:11 10:10 34:1 57:22 recognitions 7:5 recognize 10:1 recommendations 15:5 50:5 recommending 68:1 recommends 66:17 record 12:7 16:16,24 17:24 20:22 56:23 62:18 recording 17:2,8 recovered 69:17 **recovering** 27:18,21 recovers 28:4 recovery 27:22 Recreation 3:16 red 48:4,13 **reduce** 33:14 reference 19:3 64:5 **reflective** 28:16,17 29:2 refrain 58:20 66:8 regard 68:20 registry 43:2 regularly 9:19 reiterate 12:22 relate 35:13 related 29:13,25 40:9 65:4 relates 14:23 20:22,24 28:19 34:8,10 59:17 relations 6:16 8:13 10:18 60:22 63:8 relationship 36:9 relationships 29:21 30:8 38:9 relative 13:3 50:24 religious 28:3 remain 16:25

DBOPC 11/09/2023 Remember 66:6 remind 26:8 44:16 remiss 7:7 **remove** 54:2 rendered 34:23 **reopen** 18:20 repass 51:19 **repeat** 11:16 41:1 replace 54:3 replacement 43:13 replacing 12:20 **report** 3:10 7:4 13:3,11,12,17 14:19 20:11 21:25 24:15,16 26:8,10 27:9,16 33:22 34:1,2 37:9 39:21 44:6 45:2,6 50:19 59:12 63:9,12 65:3 66:24,25 67:1 reporter 6:2 reports 3:8 12:25 represent 11:23 representative 6:13 11:10 15:12 representatives 5:17 6:12 **Representing** 4:19 represents 7:6,8,9 request 12:3 requested 32:20 34:5 requests 63:14 required 15:19 requote 53:10 residence 30:20 47:9 residents 9:1 27:13 36:25 resilience 24:15 resolution 9:21 29:6 41:8 Resource 42:6 resources 49:18

19 respect 11:20 24:25 respond 40:6 **responded** 29:12,17 responding 27:20 **response** 25:4,6 56:10,11,24 67:1 responsibilities 11:18 **responsibility** 53:4,5,15,16 **restore** 40:14 results 22:19 **retirement** 36:17 42:9 returning 11:11 67:17 Reverend 2:9,11 review 19:16 32:9 reviewer 21:12 reviewers 20:9,10 reviews 19:21 revisit 19:25 **RFP** 65:18 **Ricardo** 4:18 46:22 54:15 62:2 **Rights** 14:10 **ring** 52:4 **River** 51:12 road 27:21 41:24 42:4 61:8 **rob** 32:12 robberies 28:20,21,25 Robert 5:22 47:4 **Robinson** 8:17 68:24 69:25 Rockstars 43:18 **Roland** 8:17 role 58:7 roll 42:8 rolling 41:18 room 6:24 32:6 43:11 47:8

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313.567.8100 rooted 53:24 Rory 4:21 13:5 63:25 rotation 21:13 Rouge 8:7 42:6,11 54:12,23 Roundtable 33:12 route 31:11 Ru 44:15 46:4,7 47:14 56:21 rule 34:8,10 35:1 run 26:16 42:16 50:16 running 43:14

S

safe 28:6 37:20 56:17,18 safer 29:9 safety 3:1,14 59:4,6,8 64:4,16 68:19 salaries 64:23 sale 42:18 Samantha 31:1 34:9 Sarah 8:21 Saturday 41:21 42:1 57:25 scene 16:11,12 30:18 31:21 56:11 schedule 71:11 72:3 scheduled 3:18,19,21 56:3 scheduling 68:20 school 70:19,20 71:1,7,19,23 72:5 schools 38:21 41:8 71:13 Scotty 55:10,14 scout 38:20 screen 13:18 Scuttle 10:4 search 16:22 season 42:21

11/09/2023 seat 17:24 46:15 seats 12:18 seconded 5:11 71:13 secondhand 55:17 secret 9:3 secretary 3:9 4:1 5:18 7:21 14:1 55:23 63:9,10,11 66:24 secure 37:14,15 62:11 65:12 Security 45:1 Senator 48:15 send 20:9.11 24:23 36:16 47:24 48:5 62:21 sends 20:8 Senior 2:14 19:5 seniority 66:13 sentence 48:6 **September** 21:24 22:21,22 23:10 62:14 68:7 sergeant 6:37:2226:21,25 39:3 41:6 47:5 61:24 servants 2:23 serve 36:11 38:19 served 53:8 service 10:2,24 14:11 16:21 21:21 31:24 63:3 services 15:8 29:11,23 30:9 40:25 serving 10:14 session 2:4 5:6,8 63:24 set 29:25 36:14 setting 14:14 severe 56:13 **Shah** 3:9,11 4:1,2,3,4,6,8,11, 13,15,17,18,20,21 5:18,19 6:10 7:22 14:1 63:10,11 Shake 47:23

DBOPC

Shanita 44:14 share 22:11 26:1,19,23 28:4,7 29:13 37:22 sharing 62:18 Sharon 59:3 **Shayne** 8:18 **shelter** 49:20 Sheriff 33:11 shine 55:3,4 Shinese 8:11 Shirley 8:17 shocked 28:1 shoes 35:25 shooting 28:15,16 31:10 shootings 28:13,25 39:10 40:18 shortly 32:24 shot 27:19 31:25 32:4 47:11 51:20 shots 31:17,19 Shotspotters 40:17 54:13 shoulder 61:9 **show** 61:1 62:7 showing 7:15,16 Si 6:2 **side** 8:14 31:22 Sigma 8:13 Sign 5:23 signal 68:12 signed 64:15 significance 30:10 significant 16:16,20 significantly 18:18 signify 5:11 67:9 72:6,16 signing 19:22

RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313.567.8100

similar 34:20 41:16 simply 19:19 **sir** 15:3 33:19 37:4 38:12 43:4 55:2 siren 18:2 Sisco 8:18 Sisterhood 41:15 **sit** 41:22 sites 71:12 sitting 6:10 27:6 46:15 situation 23:6 45:23,25 48:18 49:11 56:7 situations 16:19 **Sixth** 7:14 8:12 27:10 32:24 33:17 36:24 38:1,6,11,15 39:1,7,23 40:2,4 41:12 42:19, 25 43:18,22 51:22 55:6 57:18 60:22.25 61:22 63:6 **skill** 36:14 skillsets 65:13 **sleep** 52:8,16 slide 14:25 15:10,18 16:12 17:16 18:5,23 19:3 20:17,18 21:17 22:3,4,15,22 23:11,25 24:12 slipped 23:8 Sloan's 19:7 **Sloppy** 46:14 small 20:4 smile 8:25 Smith 4:6 7:11 70:2,4 smoothly 2:24 social 32:19 40:23 45:10 someone's 36:13 **son** 52:10,15 58:17,18,25 59:4 68:25 son's 52:9 58:19

11/09/2023 sons 52:9 soonest 16:2 **Sorority** 8:5,13 Southfield 33:9 59:14 sowed 52:17 speak 31:8 34:14 40:10 45:14, 16 50:17 59:21 70:6 speaker 59:25 60:11 speakers 44:12 55:8 speaking 51:10 speaks 67:21 specifics 37:18 speed 17:20 **Spencer** 10:6 60:1,2,4 Spider-man 69:6,7 spoke 31:12 41:11 spread 61:6 square 38:17,18 squares 53:20 **St** 41:24 53:17,23 stab 30:22 stabbing 30:12 staff 3:8 5:16,19 9:17,23 11:25 21:8,9 33:6 38:23 41:6 63:21 64:9,17 65:10,13 66:8,13,17, 21 staffed 13:4,9 21:1 65:9 staffing 20:19 64:10 65:4.5 stakeholders 38:22 stalk 45:10 **stalking** 45:8,15 stand 10:3,7 11:11 12:13 standing 54:25 standpoint 23:20 69:16 **Stanton-** 8:18

start 7:5 27:16 38:11 42:2,15 57:10 64:24 started 8:2 45:8 starting 51:16 55:9 64:18 starts 62:13 State 6:13 34:15 46:16 60:6 stated 31:13 33:25 35:11 **States** 46:24 statistics 18:12 39:17 stats 28:5 39:6 status 18:16,17 34:2 **stay** 61:24 stays 15:17 steadily 21:7 49:9 Steak 47:23 **step** 54:18 Stephanie 5:25 64:13 stolen 52:5 **stop** 18:4 29:4 **Stoppers** 31:7 51:17 stops 16:21 stories 25:24 story 47:11 stranger 38:7,25 strategies 27:15 40:3 strategy 40:5,13 **street** 31:14,15 38:16 40:12 streets 28:1 stress 42:24 strictly 17:11 strikes 27:2 strong 54:16 strongly 26:20 struck 31:15 32:4



DBOPC 11/09/2023

structure 44:22 student 60:6 71:20 stuff 45:16 48:14 51:13 subject 16:9 31:15 submit 4:11 submitted 4:4,21 19:1,10,12 20:16 32:8 34:4 35:6,19,20 submitting 63:23 65:18 substance 30:6 sufficient 66:5 suggest 71:17 suggestions 50:5 suicide 29:16 Summit 41:16 Sunday 32:8 supervising 6:4 19:6,7 27:1 supervisor 6:4 20:7 supplement 59:22 **support** 5:9 14:2,4 29:10,22 43:15,20 55:21,25 59:15 63:21 68:9 supportive 11:24 surplus 66:5,9,12,14,20 **suspect** 31:2,13,17,19,25 32:1,5,9 suspects 34:11 39:12 sustain 17:15 sustained 22:24 23:11,15,18 24:1,7,8,12 Suzanne's 42:11 Swab 51:17 sweater 7:1 sworn 15:21 Sylvia 8:17 system 20:13 65:19

Т tab 15:2 table 3:24 12:12 64:18 takes 2:16 58:9 61:21 taking 12:16 31:14 35:16 41:5 talk 14:20 16:4,6 25:3 27:25 31:9 38:10 39:6 42:14,24 44:20 45:17 49:19 50:13 talked 17:9 23:1,18 talking 46:25 56:10,21 **Tamara** 4:6 69:3,11 task 66:9 taxes 52:4 Taylor 5:22 teaching 58:16 **Teague** 8:18 team 4:19 14:17 18:8 19:2,8 42:17 62:9,11 65:16 teams 19:5 technological 17:7 telephone 51:14 telling 46:20 Tentative 64:24 term 56:4 70:22 terms 26:10 39:8 53:22 69:25 testimonials 26:1 Testing 13:22 thankful 49:24 Thanksgiving 66:16 theft 39:18,19,20,22 Theresa 5:21 Theta 8:13 thing 42:23 49:15,18 things 14:19 16:6,24 32:16

36:18 49:15 58:2 61:13 Thomas 53:23 Thompson 58:13 thoughts 28:3 37:15 thousand 26:16 29:19 threats 29:16 **Thursday** 3:13,15 67:17 68:17 **Tiffany** 58:12 time 10:18 21:13 23:1 26:22 29:19,20 31:20 34:15 35:3,18 45:2,6 46:2 47:10,13 48:20,23 56:8,11 60:20 61:2,18 62:24 67:25 68:1,3 70:15 71:5 timeline 30:25 times 19:24 20:1.4 50:19 51:23 62:6 Tindell 8:19 tired 48:9 today 5:21,24,25 6:2,4,6 57:22 60:20 61:2 63:12 65:5 today's 6:21,22 told 25:7 46:16,17 tonight 2:24 4:19 6:20 7:16 10:1 14:19 15:10 35:14 54:13 55:1 56:10 58:13 60:5 tonight's 12:23 tool 14:20 23:20,24 tools 14:20 15:11 top 15:14 22:6 toppy 46:14 total 18:13 19:9,11,12 21:16, 18,24 34:18 38:20 39:9,24 touring 46:9 tracking 63:13 tradition 70:25 traffic 40:7

tragedy 69:10

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

trail 30:19 trailblazing 10:24 train 61:21 trained 52:13 training 22:13,14 transparent 20:20 36:19 transported 32:2 trap 46:11 treat 49:7,16 treated 31:21 32:5 treatment 34:23 35:4 tremendous 23:23 38:8,21 40:2 42:9 trending 22:9,10,14,15 29:8 trends 24:3 trespassing 47:8 triggered 17:17,22 Trilety 8:19 Triumph 52:3 trust 60:18 65:15 Tuesday 3:19,21 32:17 50:1 63:25 turkey 42:8,12 69:8 70:1,7 Turkey's 69:19 turkeys 42:3 turn 9:3 47:18 turned 9:6 19:15 52:10 turnout 6:19 42:10 **TV** 52:6 Twelfth 32:17 45:8 twin 8:9 type 37:2 45:15 53:12 **Tyrone** 6:13

U Uber 31:12 32:5 34:21 ultimately 31:1 unanimously 9:21 underspent 65:24 66:1 67:3 understaffed 20:25 understand 69:18 Understandably 66:2 understanding 34:4 36:8 64:13 Underwood 5:22 7:21 undivided 14:24 unexpectedly 8:24 unfounded 22:24 uniform 26:13 **union** 66:10,15,18 unit 15:17 22:6 40:16 59:3 **United** 46:24 units 22:7,9,10 **unjust** 53:13,16,17,20,21,23 54:1,2 unlocked 9:2 **unmute** 60:4 unresponsive 30:15 unusual 62:23 upcoming 71:6 update 30:11 31:2 36:1 updated 28:8 36:20 63:13 updates 12:25 64:10 65:5 uplifts 53:25

vehicle 16:21 18:4 31:16 39:18 45:3 vehicles 45:19 ventures 42:21 verified 32:3 Vernal 33:18 38:5 Veronica 8:3 versus 18:25 19:1 20:19 24:1 veterans 41:22,23 53:7,8 63:15 vibes 51:24 Vice 4:4 54:11 victim 30:18,20,22 31:12,13, 16,17,18,21 41:3 59:16 victims 28:11,14 29:4 40:25 41:2 49:17,20 Victoria 8:16 **video** 6:2 view 49:17 viewing 70:6 Village 41:24 violence 33:12,14 49:8,10,11, 16,17,19 violent 28:19 29:15 56:13,14 voice 2:25 voiced 33:5 voices 9:18 **void** 23:3,4,8 **volume** 13:20 voted 9:20 64:11,12,20

W

waiting 66:13 walk-in 14:16 walking 24:24 Wall 31:1 23



V

vacancies 55:19

vacation 62:13

Wallace 8:20 wanted 12:21 13:16 14:1 19:2 25:10 55:25 56:7 60:7 69:12, 23 war 52:14 Warfield 5:20 13:13,14,22,25 15:3 warm 3:5 warrant 32:8 34:11 35:2,5,6 warrants 16:22 Warwick 38:16,17 watched 51:23 watching 47:9 Wayne 31:3 32:8 33:11 40:15 60:6 ways 33:13 wealth 61:6 weapon 32:14 weapons 32:13 44:24 45:4 wear 15:19,23 weather 13:16 Webb 8:20 website 25:17 65:2 website@detroitmi.gov 25:21 Wednesday 12:10,23 62:8,14 week 5:6 14:7 33:25 35:11 48:3 67:19 week's 27:23 64:20 68:6 weekend 47:21 weekly 67:22 weeks 30:13 35:15 66:17,23 welcoming 13:6 37:25 well- 7:18 West 8:21 42:7,11 54:11 white 6:11 7:1 33:8 37:22 William 6:15 57:4

11/09/2023 Williams 10:6 43:12 44:14,18, 20 46:3 47:17 Willie 4:13,15 46:7 **Wilson** 45:14 wishing 69:25 Witnesses 51:13 Woll's 34:9 women 4:16 54:15,16 wonderful 14:3 wondering 59:6 Woodward 3:17 word 2:7,19 words 2:9 3:5 17:6 23:5 28:2 work 9:16,18,23 11:20 31:23, 24 33:1 36:21 37:19 39:7,18 40:14 43:19 54:17 55:4,5 60:5 worked 30:23 38:7 39:19 workers 40:23 66:9 working 15:14 28:5 30:5 31:5 37:16 48:15 55:24 57:15 58:9 65:15 workload 19:4,20 workout 8:24 world's 30:12 worn 15:13,20,21,23,25 17:3 23:22 worth 65:21 wounds 30:22 writing 20:3 written 25:5 wrote 45:12 Х XX 66:3

DBOPC

Y

Yakata 5:24

YAP 11:8,12 12:9,22

year 7:18,19 9:20 10:1,3,9 20:21 24:12 28:9,10,13,14,22 29:1,2,16,18,20 30:2,3 39:21 42:20 48:2 49:9 52:10 65:25 66:2,19 67:4 69:8 70:20 71:1, 24

year's 39:9

year-to-date 28:9,10 29:1,18 30:2

years 25:15 39:19 45:7,11,21 58:16 59:1 71:4

yesterday 31:2 33:8 64:4

yield 33:15

young 9:18 26:20 53:2 57:10 63:5,7

youth 9:11,17,21,24,25 10:8, 15,19 11:4,19 41:16 57:15,17 60:6 63:4

Yvette 8:4

Yvonne 8:17

Ζ

Zeta 8:4

Zoom 5:20,23 7:2 10:5 12:10, 23 14:11 44:14 55:9 62:11

